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___________:  ... the USC Health Sciences campus for today’s joint informational hearing on hospital reimbursements.  I want to thank State Senator Ed Hernandez and State Assemblyman Bill Monning for convening this hearing today.  Hospital reimbursements are a concern for everybody.


Many of you here are here because you’re committed to this issue and your community.  While you’re here with us, I want to take this opportunity to tell you a little bit about who we are and how we invest in our community as well.


This is a very exciting time for our campus and our Keck Medical Center for USC.  For those of you who don’t know, the Keck Medical Center is a premiere academic medical center with a very unique role here in the community.  We’re made up of two USC-owned hospitals—Keck Hospital of USC and USC Norris Cancer Hospital—which employ 2,500 staff members, which are staffed by 500 top-tier physicians to the School of Medicine.


Now, right here you’re in the Stem Cell Building, the Broad Institute, and this is part of our research complex here.  Our USC School of Pharmacy is recognized as one of the nation’s foremost pharmacy schools and here on this campus as well.

Our faculty physicians also work at the L.A. County and USC Medical Center, caring for the underserved and training the next generation of physicians; many of whom will remain in the southern California area to practice medicine.  I think it’s very important to point out that our medical staff is one medical staff who covers both hospitals.  I think it’s a real opportunity in terms of the quality of care that’s provided for our county patients at L.A. County.  It’s really outstanding.

Our history with this county spans 130 years.  Today our USC faculty is one of the largest residency training programs in the country, training more than 900 residents each year at L.A. County and USC Medical Center and our two USC‑owned hospitals.  And USC has a longstanding tradition of service to the community.


This is why we are so privileged to have you on campus, discussing issues that are very important to so many health care providers.  We understand firsthand the financial climate and responsibilities facing hospitals today.  Academic medical centers have a much more complicated funds flow than other community hospitals.  We’re facing a combination of pressures.  Reduction of graduate medical education, National Institutes of Health funding, and Medicare and Medi-Cal reimbursements puts us in a unique and somewhat dangerous position.


We firmly believe in everyone’s right to health care, but there are some very real concerns around reimbursement and how we as providers can support the health care needs of our patients and the community while also being responsible stewards of our resources.  There are challenges that we’re all going to have to face moving forward to ensure our role as healers.  

Today’s hearing sets in motion a forum for collaboration and communication on these topics so that we can come up with solutions to these challenges together.  I cannot stress enough how important these discussions are.  These issues are complex and affect every American.


We’re happy to have this opportunity to host you all today and as you continue your own service toward this goal of improving the health care of our community at large.


Thank you.


SENATOR ED HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much for those kind opening remarks.


Let me take this opportunity to introduce myself.  I’m State Senator Ed Hernandez, chair of the Senate Health Committee.  With me to my right is my colleague Assemblymember Bill Monning, chair of the Assembly Health Committee.


It’s a pleasure to be here this morning at USC to make some opening remarks, but before we get started, I’d like to just, in full disclosure, let everyone know that my youngest daughter is a senior at UCLA; and saying that, you know, it makes me a little uncomfortable being at a USC campus.  [Laughter.]  Especially seeing how they always beat us in football.


Anyway, reimbursement and payment policies can drive decision-making in hospitals which can have consequences on patient health outcomes and cost.  Both at the federal level and here in California, there is a broad effort to move toward a system that improves health outcomes by incentivizing the efficient management of health care.


As part of implementing the President’s vision on health reform, we are moving more patients into managed care, promoting patient center medical homes, and encouraging the formation of accountable care organizations.  All these reforms are aimed at providing payment incentives for effectively managing care to keep people healthy, but more especially for controlling the escalating health care costs that are upon us today.


To date, hospital payments has largely remained in the old fee-for-service model of care that can sometimes reward sickness more than health.  Medi-Cal’s adoption of DRGs appears to be one step in the right direction, as it is aimed at rewarding efficient and effective treatments of conditions.

As we move from our old system to a post-form(?) world, we have a strong interest in crafting a payment methodology for hospitals that incentivizes the type of behavior policymakers want to encourage.  This hearing will give us an opportunity to examine the progress California is making in this regard and to investigate whether alleged abuses in the area of hospital reimbursement have exposed flaws in our regulatory structure so that we as state policyholders and decision-makers can make sure we can change those and move forward.  So I look forward to the testimony.


At this time, I’d like to allow my esteemed colleague Assemblymember Bill Monning to make a few opening remarks, and then we will get started with the first panel, and I’ll introduce that first panel as soon as my colleague says a few words.


Thank you.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER BILL MONNING:  Thank you, Dr. Hernandez.  I also just want to add my thanks to USC Medical School and the Broad Center for hosting us this morning.  I want to thank all of you for joining, particularly those who will be providing testimony today.


One of my keen interests as chair of the Assembly Health Committee is looking at the, I believe, unsustainable trends of disease and illness in our communities and the need to get more resources into prevention programs, the promotion of health and wellness.  That said, our communities rely on hospital access and on billing protocols that, first and foremost, are fair to patients.


We’re going to hear from many stakeholders today.  We’re going to hear from hospitals.  We’re going to hear from insurance companies.  We’ll hear from doctors, nurses, staff.  All of these stakeholders have an important role to play, but I think the primary lens through which we will come out of these hearings today is the lens of the patient—the consumer of health care services—and how are these billing practices either serving that interest of care—quality care for patients—and ultimately, affordable care not just for patients but for our society.

So I just want to thank Dr. Hernandez for his leadership, the staff of both committees for their preparation, and all of you for being here today.  I’m looking forward to hearing the testimony and engaging in a productive and respectful conversation.


Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much, Assemblymember Monning.


We’re going to move on to our first presenter, item number two under your agenda, under “Hospital Reimbursement Mechanisms.”  It’s going to be “Overview of How Hospitals Are Reimbursed by Public and Private Payors for Network and Out-of-Network Care.”  The first presenter is going to be Vivian Wu, Ph.D.  She is the assistant professor, Sol Price School of Public Policy at USC.


Thank you and welcome.


PROFESSOR VIVIAN WU:  Thank you.  It’s a great honor to be here.


The way the hospitals in the U.S. are reversed is in a highly complex system.  And because we rely on a pluralistic multiple payer system, how and how much hospitals are reimbursed will depend on who the insurance payer is and how the contract is negotiated.  So at the very basic level, I’m just going to provide a very brief overview of how the reimbursement mechanisms are by type of payer; namely, Medi-Cal, Medicare, and the private payers.

So the first is the federally sponsored, state-administered Medicaid program.  Because this is a state-administered program, payment method varies by the state.  In California, we currently pay hospitals on a per diem basis.  A per diem rate is just a flat rate for a day a patient stays in the hospital, and typically, the rate of the per diem varies by the type of services that’s provided and a little bit by the kind of diseases and diagnosis the patient is.

In the Medicare program, Medicare pays … oh, I think there’s a typo there.  I think I have a slide.  I’ll correct that.  But anyway, Medicare pays a diagnostic‑related group, or DRG, system to the hospital.  The way for which that they define a DRG is that all the cases are grouped into now about 600 or so DRG groups by the diagnosis and by the procedures that are performed to the patient.  And typically, DRG is just a flat rate per case admitted to a hospital.  So there is a base rate, and different diagnoses and with complications or without complications and by certain kind of procedures that are done will be adjusted upwards or downwards according to the severity and the resources that’s used to care for that.  And the incentives are that because, you know, the price here is a fixed price per admission, and so, if the providers have any incentive to increase their profit, then if the price is negotiated, then the incentive is to increase the quantity.  So the price here is a flat rate per admission, and the incentive is increased—the quantity—which is the number of admissions there.


In the private payer system, things are more complicated, and let’s take a little bit of minutes to go back to how hospitals were paid in the past because it bears some relevance to several controversial issues people face today.  In the good old days, private plans paid hospitals by procedure—by things that are performed to a patient—which is called a “fee-for-service system.”  Payments are usually based on what’s called “usual” or “reasonable” cost summary charges, and these kinds of charges by procedure are developed by the hospitals, and they develop their own very lengthy lists of procedures and how much they would cost them, how much they would charge them, and they update that list of charges frequently; at least annually or more frequently than that.

The way the hospitals determine how much to charge for a certain procedure has really little science in it, and there’s basically no systematic way of how hospitals update their charges.  Anecdotal evidence suggests that how the public payers pay the hospital and the cost of providing care, such as labor costs or the cost of equipment and devices and drugs and hospitals’ appetite for profit and hospital operating efficiencies, all of that would all play a role, but it’s unclear how much of each factor affects their charges.  

So that’s what happened in the past.  But with the rise of managed care since the ’80s, that really transformed the way how hospitals are paid.  Managed care, the cornerstone of managed care, is that they form their network provider and negotiate heavily with the providers in terms of how they are paid and the rate of which they pay.  And so, that then encourages long lists of the new payment methods that were developed over time.


So this is just a list, but not a very comprehensive list, of how hospitals have been paid.  So the first is this county fee-for-service.  So they started to negotiate heavily, this county rate, of those list charges.  There’s per diem rate.  As we said, it’s a flat rate per day in a hospital.  And there is DRG after Medicare started to implement DRG rates and managed care started to piggyback on the DRG rates—started to use the DRG rate, the Medicare determined rate—to pay for hospitals on the private system as well.  And they could also use a case rate where they followed the DRG categorization of the cases but they negotiate on their own rate.


And there is also a new payment method that people are talking about now.  It’s called “episodes of care” payment.  That is, you know, if people have a heart attack, all the costs associated with that heart attack, wherever that occurs—in an outpatient setting, in an inpatient setting, in a post-acute setting.  Everything is inclusive.  That’s an episode-of-care payment.  And the most extreme way is the capitation method.  That is a fixed payment per member, usually per year, and that’s all-inclusive of any kind of diseases and diagnosis or any visits and resources.  That’s covered with that flat rate.

So although there is a long list of ways at how hospitals are paid, I think usually the consensus is that the predominate way that hospitals are paid over time until today is the per diem rate.


Why do we talk about chargemaster?  Because chargemaster was once useful and it’s no longer functional.  It is just like the appendix that remains in your body.  So, you know, 98, 99 percent of the privately insured payers are now covered by managed care.  And why do hospitals still maintain a charge list?  I guess that it is useful in some instances when managed care does not play a role.  And so, there are two instances where managed care or the private insurance plan do not have a binding contract.


The first instance is the uninsured.  Because the uninsured people don’t have the insurance contract to begin with—so the uninsured people do not have the insurance to negotiate any payment method or any payment rates for them—the uninsured are usually charged according to the full chargemaster, until recently.  The California Fair Payment Act actually mandated that hospitals start to give discounts to low-income, uninsured people.


The second instance is the out-of-network provider case where privately insured people, when they are cared for by hospitals that do not have a contract with their private plans—and therefore, there’s no insurance contract to follow—and therefore, out-of-network hospitals then can bill whatever they want.  And I think they typically bill the full charges according to chargemaster.  And insurance companies, because of this out-of-network, there’s no agreed-upon contracts to tell them how much they should pay.  So insurance companies sometimes pay a discounted rate, sometimes refuse to pay, and therefore, the providers will then turn to bill the patients for whatever difference that insurance does not pay.  And this is what we call the “balance billing,” and except for emergency care contacts, you know, people still face this full charge when they are cared for by out-of-network providers.


And for the different payment mechanisms, I think it’s useful to just go over what are the incentives embedded under different payment systems.  So if we can line up the different payment systems according to the degree which the reimbursement reflects costs, fee-for-service lies on here where, you know, 100 percent of the costs incurred for treating the patient is covered.  Okay?  So there’s really no incentive to reduce costs because whatever is expended, it will be reimbursed.


Discounted fee-for-service—this is the next—at least some discount will be negotiated, but the incentive is still to increase quantity.  That is, whatever procedure and service is provided to the patient.


The next would be per diem, where care is reimbursed on the per day, and resources used within a day is not reimbursed but a fixed-day rate.  So the quantity here is the number of hospital days.  And so, the incentive is to increase length of stay and maybe admissions as well.

And the next is the DRG payment where the price is the payment per admission and the quantity is then the number of admissions.  So when the price is negotiated, the quantity will increase, which is the number of admissions.


Lastly, capitation is the all-inclusive payment, and so, it really does not reflect how much costs is incurred to care for the patient.


Therefore, the incentive to provide care is that under the fee-for-service system, we tend to incentivize providers to overprovide care because there’s no incentive to reduce costs.  Whereas, on the other extreme, to the extent that quality is not directly observed, there’s incentive to reduce costs or minimize costs in order to provide some profits.  So if the provider has some incentive to increase profit, then the incentive under more, what we call a “prospective payment system” is to underprovide care.


So the issues related to switching from a per diem to a DRG rate, we probably have observed that some of them are happening with the Medicare transition from their fee-for-service to the DRG system.  And what we have observed in the past is that there is incentive for providers to do upcoding.  DRG categorizes payments into 600 or so payment groups.  To some extent, there are several DRG.  They are under the similar diagnosis.  Some of them are paid at a higher rate.  So, for example, pneumonia without complications versus with complications are paid differently.  Sometimes the difference can be twice as much.  So there is incentive for a patient coming with pneumonia to code them a little bit higher so that the hospital can be paid at a higher rate.

Empirical evidence, such as that for Medicare, upcoding has cost Medicare about .3 percent of Medicare reimbursement, which may sound very small but in terms of absolute number can be up to billions of dollars.


There is also incentives to do what we call “unbundling.”  To simplify that, it is just a balloon effect.  So when hospital payment is squeezed, the balloon will pop up somewhere else.  Typically, a switch from a per diem to DRG is considered as payment reduction, and so, inpatient spending might be reduced; but spending for nonhospital care will increase, such as the rehab skilled nursing, home health care, and sometimes outpatient services.


Lastly, this issue that people debate frequently—that is, whether the transition from a more prospective payment system will induce more cost cutting versus cost shifting.  Cost cutting is under an idea that when you want a provider to be more efficient, you just pay them less and they will cost less.  So empirically, do we observe that?  Yes.  So when Medicare switched from a fee-for-service payment system into a DRG system, we do see that a lot of providers responded by cutting a lot of their operating costs and treatment costs.  It doesn’t really result in worse quality.  A lot of that is regarded as increasing efficiency.  So that was happening.

But there is also another concern—the sense that hospitals face multiple payers.  When public payers cut their prices, there might be incentive for them to increase prices that they charge to other private payers, and empirically, I think we also observe that as well.  So when Medicare and Medicaid reduce their prices, private prices goes up.  And I think there’s a debate as to how much that degree of cost shifting occurs.  And I think more recent evidence sort of suggests that, you know, we do see both cost cutting and cost shifting occurs at the same time, but the degree that it occurs varies by hospitals’ market power.  So when hospitals do not have market power, they will do more cost cutting.  When hospitals do have market power, they will tend to increase their payments from the private payers.


If we transition from the per diem to the DRG rate, we also need to be very reasonable in how much we pay the providers.  One issue is the payment efficacy, because we know that like 20 percent of the health care costs is incurred by … 80 percent of the health care costs is incurred by the 20 percent of very high-cost patients.  So DRG pays a fixed average rate to all hospitals.  And so, for some providers, they may incur more costs because they disproportionately attract more sicker people.  So the public payers need to be aware of paying those high-cost patients more, which is what we call the “outlier payments” or sometimes a more sophisticated, reasonable adjustment payment.


You know, what we also observe in the past in the Medicare-DRG payment is that there is regulatory lags such that sometimes the government payment level does not really reflect what the actual cost of providing care.  So there is a lack of that.  So there’s a period of time that there is overpayment to the providers, where DRG rates are set too high—much higher than the actual causes(?)—but there’s also a period of time when the DRG payment or the public payer levels will be underpaying the providers.  I think more typically than not, the public payer rates are sometimes more often underpaying the providers, so that we observe that if the payment rate is very low, the access to care and the quality of care might be affected.


The other issue that is really important is the payment for quality because of the transition toward a more prospective payment system.  The incentive embedded there is to reduce costs, so therefore, efficiency might be increased.  But what we observe is that there is not direct incentive for better quality.  So with that transition, we need to be careful of how quality may be affected, and the best way to incentivize provision of quality is perhaps to pay for quality directly.


And so, lastly, I just want to talk about some major reimbursement issues in the current hospital environment.  What we’ve observed in the most recent decade is that hospital payments have been growing very rapidly.  In fact, since the late 1990s, it has been growing at about 7 percent per year, and there’s various research trying to understand what is really driving this recent trend because it’s really unsustainable.  If we compare, this is the payment growth rate which is estimated by total net patient revenue from all payers, and it has increased by about 50 percent.  This is only up to 2007 data, and this is just a comparison to the price that all consumers face.  This is the Consumer Price Index, and you can see that there’s no way that we can sustain that.  If you plot another GDP graph, the hospital payment is also growing at about like two percentage points above the GDP rates.

The only issue that is related to this high and growing hospital payment rate is that there is a huge variation in prices paid to the hospital, and evidence has suggested this huge variation in terms of payment is not directly related to cause or quality.  And several papers have shown that … this is just an example for a cardiac valve replacement surgery in California in the year of 2008, that according to the data available, the cost per case can vary by about three times.  And in terms of the payment for exactly the same procedure can vary by about 6.3 times.  It’s really hard to understand and explain what is really driving that variation across hospitals for the very same procedure.


And lastly, I think that people are trying to understand both the rising payment and the variations in payment across hospitals, and based on some of my work and other people’s work, there’s at least some evidence that suggests that hospital market power might be related to higher payment that is received by several hospitals.


Thank you very much.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.  I have a couple of comments I’d like to make, and then perhaps just make one brief question, if you don’t mind.


Obviously, I understand the need for hospitals to at least cover their overhead and have a profit level so that they can sustain their business plan.  But I also understand that very soon with health care reform we’re going to be requiring everyone to purchase health insurance.  But we also have to make sure that the reimbursement rate as well as what the patient pays and what the consumer’s going to be responsible to pay is fair and equitable.  Therefore, it’s really important to me that government needs to make sure and have that oversight.


And I’m really impressed with your graph here that shows overprovide/underprovide with the fee-for-service capitation.  Obviously, when you look at government paying hospitals, especially with DRG—not necessarily with capitation perhaps but with Medi-Cal and Medicare—and in light of the fact that whether at the federal level or especially at the state level would reduce revenues, the state just can’t pay too much, and the federal government’s going to be very careful on what they pay.  Therefore, the cost shifting.


So my concern is how do we make sure that hospitals continue to at least have a profitability margin? but at the same point, I think the area of concern has got to be in the private and/or the private market.  How do we make sure that we don’t overprovide and make sure that we don’t overcharge to a point that would hurt the consumer?  And what’s government’s role to make sure, and how do we make sure that that doesn’t happen?  
I know it’s a lengthy … because our role is we’ve got to make sure that hospitals stay at least profitable but not at the expense of the consumer.  How do we do that, as far as our role in government?


PROFESSOR WU:  I think this is a really hard question that a lot of policymakers and researchers are really scratching our heads as to how we can best provide efficient payment and equitable payment to the providers.

My understanding is that, along with this chart, we know that if we pay on the fee for service, the incentive is very clear; that there is a very strong incentive to overprovide.  And if we pay on the full capitation, we know the incentive to underprovide is really strong.  


So I think the consensus is that we do not like this kind of extreme.  And the question is, really, where do we want the payment to lie on this line?


I think people generally agree that if we move toward a more prospective payment system, that generally it encourages more efficiency but at the same time, you know, to correct the incentive to underprovide.  Then we can couple with the prospective payment system with the incentive to provide quality of care.  So it really is the balance how we can grapple among the two incentives here.


So what’s really important is that I think the agency, just like the Medicare—they have a whole agency; they have a very sophisticated way of trying to see how the rate of inflation in health care costs should have been, given the rate of inflation costs in other provider market input price changes.  They estimate change in the cost of care in the medical treatment, and that needs to be very frequently monitored.  I think at the same time, we want to provide some direct measures of the outcomes.  At the same time, we want to improve the efficiency, but we also want to improve the quality.


So that’s pretty much my take.  We understand that it’s probably leaning toward a more prospective payment system, but we really have to really monitor that.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.  Thank you.


Did you have any questions, Assemblymember?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Just to follow up on yours, Senator.


The challenge on capitation is potentially underproviding to maximize profit.  Has there been any exploration of some hybrid where you use a DRG reimbursement mechanism maybe based on what’s happened over the last two or three years at a particular hospital or provider and link it to some kind of capitation formula?  The real problem I see with capitation is how do you measure quality?

PROFESSOR WU:  Those are really, really good questions.  I think that it’s really hard to really estimate how much a person would cost—a  more longer term spectrum.  You know, I think people have used very sophisticated ways trying to see how much a person would cost.  The most sophisticated model can probably estimate about 50 to 60 percent of the costs.  So there is a large variation in terms of what costs would be incurred, and then we just have no way of predicting that.


I think that sort of suggests that using a global capitation rate would really pose a lot of risk on the providers because a lot of the health care costs is unpredictable.  It’s what we call “uncertainty.”  A perfectly healthy person can somehow have the onset of diseases without any prior history.  And so, I think if we can narrow it down to like an episode of care—the onset of a disease does happen—I think to predict that kind of cost is much more reliable than predicting just like, you know, what Patient A’s/Patient B’s annual costs would be.

And so, how do we measure quality of care is another issue that some people argue that we can just look at the outcome, but some people argue that the process of care also matters.  And so, I think the predominant way of viewing it is that we probably need to use a blended measure of both the process of care and the outcomes of care to monitor the quality.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.


We’re going to move on to item number three on the agenda.  That’s going to be “Overview of Shifting From Per Diem to [the DRG,] the Diagnosis-Related Groups.”  The presenter is going to be Toby Douglas, Director of the Department of Health Care Services.


I’d like to thank the director for being here in southern California.  I appreciate him taking time.  And welcome.


MR. TOBY DOUGLAS:  Thank you very much, Senator Hernandez, Assemblymember Monning.  It’s always a pleasure to present to you.  And it’s a great follow-up after Professor Wu’s presentation.  That was a great presentation.  It really lays the foundation for what I’m going to talk about.


We are—Department of Health Care Services—moving to a DRG-based payment system, and it really, as Senator Hernandez laid out at the beginning, is really about trying to move towards better value and positioning ourselves for health care reform; to move to a system that’s really about paying for efficiency, for quality, as well as ensuring access.  We believe that when we move to a DRG system, we will be able to move to a payment methodology that really allows for more transparency, really aligning our payments within our hospital system towards the cost of care, towards acuity, and moving away from a system right now that’s based on per diem.


So we are very excited that the Legislature last year took the action to move us towards a DRG and away from the current system.  So I thought I’d just quickly step through where we’ve been in the past; make sure everyone knows that since 1983, the state Medicaid program—Medi-Cal—has been under a selective provider contracting program where we contract with hospitals on a per diem basis, or we pay them for a daily rate.  And contracted hospitals, you’ve got a rate that’s negotiated through a commission that’s structured at the state level to contract and to accept the hospital contracts with the state, and there, become a hospital where patients are able to be seen both for emergency as well as post-stabilization.  If a hospital and the state doesn’t contract with the Department of Health Care Services through the California Medical Assistance Commission, then they are a noncontract hospital that more or less is paid at their costs, but they’re only able to see patients for emergency, and once they’re stabilized, they’re transferred to one of our contract hospitals.  The only exception is in areas where we do not have sufficient number of hospitals that are considered “open areas”; that are not designated as part of the contract program.  And those hospitals are usually in rural areas, and they’re paid at cost, and they can see both emergency and post-stabilization.

So we are moving away from this system that, really, we believe over time has not aligned the right incentives and has really been based on a lot of what … back to Professor Wu laid out, and on this spectrum was increasing costs, and really, we don’t believe providing better outcomes and reflecting … payment reflected on the acuity of the population.  

What we’re able to do when we move to a DRG-based system is really appropriately align where the payment is going to be based on the severity, with higher acute cases getting a higher payment and low-acute patients getting a lower payment.  And what it will also do over time is create more efficiency where the hospitals will be encouraged to reduce the length of stay.


So we were planning on moving forward with the new DRG-based system on July 1st of 2012, but we’ve decided to postpone it until January 1, 2013, given the complexity of moving from our current system.  There’s a lot of need for analyzing data.  We’ve been working to review the data; we have consultation from experts, including hospitals.  We want to give time for hospitals to prepare for this big change, and so we’re moving forward now and definitely implementing January 1, 2013.


But given that this is a huge change and it will impact hospitals from their per diem rate, where some hospitals are going to change and see dramatic changes in what their payment was based on, the contracted rates, that we need a transition period, and we’ll be transitioning over a three-year … have a three-year transition period with the fourth year being full implementation of the new DRG-based methodology.


Now, there are many different types of DRG payment systems, and we are using one that has been developed by 3M that’s called APR-DRG.  It’s been developed in a way that’s specific more to the Medicaid programs nationally and, in particular, taking into account children’s hospitals; because normally, DRGs are used in the Medicare realm where there are not the similar population, especially those children with special health care needs.  So we are using an APR-DRG.  Now, the DRG will have various adjustments, including geographic adjustments.  Has a base price and that base price will vary from a rural area to an urban area.  There are also policy adjusters that we will be making to reflect important policies for the Medicaid programs, such as neonatal care, pediatric populations, as well as age adjusters.


And this gets to some of the questions that Senator Hernandez raised earlier.  We are creating this DRG payment system, but we also need to reflect the array of hospitals and those hospitals that provide a really important role in insuring the Medi-Cal population and the safety net.  So we are keeping separate certain supplemental payments, such as the disproportionate share of hospital payments that go for hospitals that provide a high level of uninsured and Medi-Cal, as well as a separate supplemental payment program that we have.  Both those supplemental payments will be based on Medi-Cal participation and will be used so that we can make sure that we’re supporting the safety net system and using that as another policy adjuster.


We definitely, as I said, will expect that there’s going to be a redistribution of the funds between the hospitals, and while this is an impact on the hospitals, it really does appropriately align the payment to the acuity and drives the right outcomes, both in terms of creating more efficiency and over time better quality.  We do expect that the DRG system and the way we incorporate policy adjusters over time are going to reflect some of the points that Dr. Wu noted.  We can’t just focus on efficiency.  We need to start rewarding quality and outcomes.  And the DRG system can add in new policy adjusters over time, as we get metrics for quality and outcomes, to make sure that hospitals aren’t moving too far on this spectrum of underproviding under a DRG system; that we also add in components to the DRG that reflect higher quality, better outcomes.  So we’re moving like to stay in the right direction, but we’re also moving quality in the right direction.

So the final piece gets to—and this, I’m sure, will be a conversation later in the day—relates to how are we going to monitor the utilization issues of making sure that the appropriate utilization and appropriate coding is occurring under our new DRG system.  Currently, again, the way we monitor utilization, we are doing this on a per diem basis.  We have nurses throughout the state that go out to hospitals and review the authorization requests for every day.  So it’s an extremely labor-intensive process.  It creates a lot of inefficiencies, both from state bureaucracy as well as for the hospitals.  So the good thing here we’re switching from is, again, it’s based on a whole length of stay and the hospitals aren’t going to have each day reviewed.  Rather, they have now the incentive to reduce the length of stay and provide the right outcomes.


But we still need to make sure that the payment that we’re making—because it’s going to be based on acuity, based on all the different policy adjusters—is reflective of what the true makeup of the patient who’s presenting.  So we will be going out and doing onsite audits of the hospitals to make sure that they are appropriately coding and making sure that we’re paying correctly.  We’ll also be making sure that … for example, we don’t want to be paying for preventable conditions; those events that never should have occurred, such as “never events.”  So we’ll be going out and making sure that those events don’t occur, and we’ll be reviewing for unreported of “never events.”


The issue of upcoding, or “case mix creep,” is something that has been a concern in Medicare, and we will be watching this as well very carefully.  I do want to note, though, that upcoding and case mix is really focused on what normally is a fraudulent or inappropriate activity of trying to get higher reimbursement for a patient that doesn’t reflect their true level of care.  And what we expect to see is documentation and coding improvement.  Right now there is no incentive for our hospitals to actually document what’s going on with our patients since it’s all on a per-day basis.  And over time we’re going to see that occurring.  That’s actually a good thing, but we’re going to have to make sure, as we get better documentation and coding, we reflect that on our payment because we don’t want to suddenly see the amount of payments that’s going out increase significantly because of the better documentation.  So that change and case mix should happen over time.


But we do need to ensure the integrity of the program, and we’re going to be going out and auditing, and we’ll have both data systems in place.  If we see a hospital that should stay relatively flat in terms of its case mix and suddenly it goes out of whack—those are going to be indicators for us to go out and do an onsite review and understand why did their case mix suddenly change.  So we’ll be using both technology as well as onsite staff to go out and review and make sure we don’t have upcoding, or case mix creep, which definitely shouldn’t occur.


Another place would be looking at outlier stays.  Now, outliers should happen, and outliers are examples of a very expensive case that every hospital has, and we had built in … you have to build into your DRG system an ability to pay for outliers so the hospitals are not holding all the risk when they do have a DRG.  Let’s say it’s a $5,000 DRG, but suddenly the case costs 20,000.  Those outliers need to be accounted for.  But if we suddenly see a large number of outliers—again, that’s going to be a signal that we need to go onsite, review, and understand what’s going on.


So on that I will open it up for questions.  Again, really, we feel this is helping us move forward with health care reform.  We have a lot of changes going on, but we are focused most importantly on trying to drive our system towards better value, better outcomes.  A DRG payment system moves us in that direction.  It’s obviously pushing our hospitals in a new direction at the same time many other payers are moving to a DRG.  We want to align incentives across different payers; make sure that Medi-Cal is working with other payers.  At the same time, we’re going to see a large number of uninsured moving onto the Medi-Cal program.  We also have a hospital fee that’s helping build additional payment and additional funding into the hospital system.  All of them moving and preparing us for health care reform.


So thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  I do have some questions, but if you don’t mind, I’d like to just make a couple of introductions before we move forward.  It’s my honor to, to my left, introduce a colleague of mine:  State Senator Kevin de León.  We’re technically still in my district.


SENATOR KEVIN DE LEÓN:  Technically.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Yeah, this is still my district.  [Laughter]  Welcome to my district, Senator de León.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  Until the end of the year.  I think until the end of the year, right?


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Until the end of the year.  At the end of the year, with the new lines, then he picks it up.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  But it’s very well represented by you, Dr. Hernandez.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.  And also, I’d like to note that Susan McEntire from Das Williams’ office is here, as well as Rebekah Rodriguez-Lynn from Senator Fran Pavley’s office is here as well.


I do have a couple of comments, and then I’m going to try to do a lot of questions all within the comment.  Hopefully, you’ll be able to address them.


Obviously, we’re going to be moving to the DRG method.  We’re going to be following the lead that Medicare is doing at the federal level.  And I understand the need for the efficiencies:  to make sure that the state of California is appropriately making reimbursements but at the same time saving money.


Obviously, we’re creatures of habit, and anytime there’s change, there’s always a little discomfort.  And so, I’ve heard some concerns from the Hospital Association about that movement in.  I just want to get your feedback to how that’s going and how you’re addressing their concerns.


Also, you had talked about selected providers but also out-of-network and the out-of-network providers that they had the emergency situation, that they can take patients.  But I want to figure out and ask you about the areas of dispute:  how you reimburse those individuals and how you come up with those resolutions; obviously trying to make sure that they get paid at a fair rate but also that the state doesn’t overpay as well.


You had also mentioned children’s hospitals and you have adjusted DRGs, but I also have a follow-up question on specialty hospitals because I have two of them that I represent.  One is the City of Hope and also the Keck Medical Center at USC, which is slightly different than the children’s hospital but in the sense that they deal with the absolute, most sick individuals; the absolute most difficult cases of cancer and cancer treatments.  So therefore, I think they’re going to need a little bit different specialty type of DRG because they can’t just go based on the average hospital stay because they have much more acute cases.  So I wanted to find out what your thought was.  It’s kind of ironic:  I have a bill moving along to deal with that as well.

And then just to follow up, the final question is:  What do you do with individuals that you do find on the upcoding, and what is the disciplinary action if that were to occur?


I know there’s a lot of questions, but that just kind of capsulizes some thoughts that I have.  If you don’t mind answering some of those.


MR. DOUGLAS:  All right.  So I’ll take them one at … so the first question relates to the move to DRG and how have the hospitals … there has been … so we recently received a letter from the Hospital Association asking us to delay implementation.  We are moving forward.  You know, the Legislature has authorized us to move forward.  We are committed to moving forward.  This Administration has committed, as I said, the same, to making sure we’re paying for value and outcomes.


But any changes, as you said, of the status quo is very difficult.  As we presented data to the hospitals—and they’re able to see their individual hospitals—it’s a huge movement of dollars across the different hospitals because we are now moving to a system that’s really reflective of acuity rather than ability to negotiate based on volume to other factors.  And so, it is going to create a change, and that’s why it’s so important for us to do this transition over a four-year period, because we want to give the time for the hospitals to transition, and we’re not seeing any hospital could do this overnight.  And what we expect to happen, and as Professor Wu said, is that if a hospital knows that it’s going to change over time, they’re going to change their behavior and have the time to implement efficiencies, change in how they do their business, in essence, and be able to move to the new payment methodology.  Now, that’s coupled—and this is the factors that we have to … coupled with.  We’re only dealing with the payments that are … really, the per diem payments.  We still have supplemental payments outside of this that we are not incorporating in for those that are high Medi-Cal hospitals, and we are keeping that separate, and we will continue to pay those hospitals that focus on our population at higher rates.  That’s one big piece.  


The second big piece is we have a hospital fee that is going on right now that is providing a large infusion for the hospitals over the next 30 months of additional funding that will help supplement what they are receiving and we hope will help them invest.


And then the third big piece is we’ve got health care reform in 2014.  We have a large number of uninsured that will becoming Medicaid/Medi-Cal eligible, that should also provide additional funding into all those hospitals, both those who are going to get increases but, most important, those who will see decreases.


So the transition coupled with those three factors are really important.


But we are moving forward.  We are moving forward.  We’ve been continuing to tell the hospitals that we can’t … we’re not developing a payment methodology that tries to minimize the impact on the hospitals.  It has to be based on policy and outcomes.  It has to be based on value on the factors that Dr. Wu said that I’ve noted.  And that’s what we’ve been looking at, is what are our policy goals?  Our policy goal is definitely to preserve the safety net system, and that’s why we’re keeping the supplemental.  And we have others.  We’ve got to look at acuity, and that’s not really a policy but that’s how it’s structured.  Then we have the age.  We serve a large number of kids in our program.  We want to make sure that there’s pediatric care.  We want to make sure there’s high quality specialty care both for adults and children.  So we’ve looked at different ways that we can … and we want to make sure there’s rural hospitals.  So there’s different factors, and those are just some of the ones we’ve looked at.  So that’s that question.


Now in terms of emergency … did that answer that question?


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Yes.  Very much.  Thank you.


MR. DOUGLAS:  On the emergency outliers—now, this gets into … the way Medicaid rules—and when I say Medicaid, on a national level.  There is a requirement that hospitals who are not either on our contracted program within a managed care system or in the fee-for-service, that they see any Medicaid patient and they have to pay whatever the Medicaid fee schedule is.  So currently, what would happen under our selective provider contract and program is those hospitals that are seeing emergency days would be paid at cost and then they would transfer the patient to one of our contracted hospitals.


What will happen under this new payment methodology—it will be the DRG.  There won’t be contractor or noncontractor.  They will be paid based on the acuity of the population that they see as well as based on the other policy adjusters.  If it’s, you know, in a NICU setting, then they would be paid more.  So there’s already … we don’t have disputes.  There will be no ability to dispute.  If it’s in a managed care setting, which I know you’ll talk a lot about this afternoon with our … and we have a big managed care program.  There’s federal laws, as I said, that if a hospital is a noncontract hospital with one of our managed care plans, then the hospital has to pay … I mean, has to be reimbursed whatever the Medi-Cal rate is.  So they’ll be paid for that noncontract day at whatever we price our DRGs in the fee-for-service system, and there can’t be a dispute.  Now, once they become stabilized, they have to be transferred.  This is where the dispute still can happen, because if they are stabilized and they’re not able to get in touch with another hospital, then they have to pay at any rate.  There are state law rules about having to notify the plan and get them transferred, but that’s where some of the complexity gets in, and we work with our plans to try to make sure that doesn’t occur.

Specialty hospitals.  So the DRG system is structured in a way, again, where there’s a base price that’s based on, again, urban and rural, and then there are many acuity adjusters; and there are thousands of acuity adjusters.  When you get to specialty hospitals, whether it’s cancer or others, there are acuity adjusters that can multiply that base price by upwards of hundreds to two hundred, that take into account some of these specialty care situations of cancer and others.


Now, we’re working—and that’s part of a subgroup—to talk more about this, but one of the points, without saying that a decision has been made, is that we have to look at this in the context that the DRG already, actually, is built in a way to take into account these special type of cases.


And then, the final …


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  The upcoding section.


MR. DOUGLAS:  Now, this is the hardest one, and I might have to come back to you with a written response since we don’t have … you know, we’re moving into unchartered territories.  I can tell you now is that if we have overpayments … so now we’re on a per diem basis.  If someone goes into a hospital under a per diem—as I said, our nurses are going out and reviewing the days and only approving those.  So we can’t have … there’s no issue of upcoding.  That’s why it’s the value of a per diem day.  Very intensive and not the right incentives.  We can have overpayments where they might have their costs that they report are too high and we go in and we pull back their costs and we have an ability to recover the costs.


I’ll need to get back to you—unless, Mary, if you have an answer on this?—of what actions, what ability do we have to take action at the state level and if this is something that we’re going to need legislation or regulatory action to be able to once we implement this, and I need to get back to you on that.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I’d appreciate it.  Thank you very much.


MR. DOUGLAS:  Sure.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I wasn’t sure if there’s any other questions from any of the Members.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  I have just a quick comment.  I’m mindful of the time concerns here.


Thank you, Mr. Douglas, both you and your department, for both your presence here and the work you’ve done to try to keep us informed as the department moves forward.


You referenced several times the Affordable Care Act and several million uninsured Californians becoming eligible in that there will be access and a source of payment for many.  Your thoughts were maybe a homework assignment.  Is the department looking at the capacity to accommodate this massive increase of eligible patient population, particularly with respect to hospital care/emergency room capacity?  And maybe just quickly, what work is being done to anticipate equitable access and … and just access?

MR. DOUGLAS:  I’ll say the issue of access is obviously one of the biggest issues we’re grappling with for the Affordable Care Act, but I would say, when I think of the access, it’s more for the primary care, for the outpatient setting.  And we are concerned about that, given the need for bringing in additional workforce.  And it gets to, also, some proposals that we have in front of the Legislature on trying to realign the way the payments are structured for some of our community health centers to reward efficiency and increase access.


On the hospital side, I’ll need to get back to you because a lot of hospital care is driven by the acuity of the population, and even the uninsured are able to go in; but now the issue is, is that huge burden on the individual.  The question, and this could be a discussion I’ll need to have with my partners in OSHPD—the Office of Statewide Health Planning—if we see issues of need for additional hospitals or beds or it’s really going to be an ability that now there’ll be more volume and more funding coming into the system, that should help continue to stabilize the health care system.  So I’ll have to get back to you on that question too.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Any others?


I appreciate very much your time and comments.  Thank you for coming to southern California.  Sorry we have to give you such lousy weather.  [Laughter.]


MR. DOUGLAS:  I’ll say Go Bears!


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  At least it’s a bear.  It’s not a Trojan, right?


All right.  Now we’re going to be moving onto item number four:  “Hospital Reimbursement by Private Payers.”


Before I bring up the panelists, we have fallen slightly behind in time.  What I ask of the remainder of the presenters, if they can try to keep their remarks as close to the timeline that was allotted, it would be appreciated so we get out at a reasonable hour as well.


We’re going to be hearing subsection one of item number four:  “The Health Plan Perspective.”  We’re going to have Nick Louizos, Director of Legislative Affairs, from the California Association of Health Plans; as well as Jonathan Gluck, Senior Executive and Counsel, Heritage Provider Network.  So we’ll have those two up first.


Thank you.  And welcome.


MR. NICHOLAS LOUIZOS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and Mr. Chair and Members.  Nick Louizos with the California Association of Health Plans.  I’ll start by saying Go Trojans! at the risk of prejudicing myself.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  We’re going to have some problems here today.  [Laughter.]


MR. LOUIZOS:  Just quickly, by way of background—the California Association of Health Plans represents 40 Knox-Keene licensed health plans in the state of California that cover over 22 million Californians in the state in the managed care market—the managed care portion of the industry, which is the dominant delivery model in the state.


Health plans fulfill more than a traditional insurance role.  We’re required by law and by design to do more than just pay for care.  We deliver prepaid systems of care to our enrollees.  The DMHC monitors and ensures that plans are delivering systems of care that are accessible to enrollees, and there are specific hospital standards in that regard.  Health plans deliver these systems in a variety of ways.  One is the integrated model—à la Kaiser—but most health plans have to contract with doctors, specialists, and hospitals, which is the subject of today’s hearing.


Health plans are proud that they’ve developed these contractual relationships throughout the state.  When plans and hospitals agree on a contract, the plan is obligated to pay the negotiated contract amount to the hospital for care.  Payment to an in-network hospital can vary and take a variety of forms.  And I won’t go down the list since Professor Wu already did that.  I would just note that with respect to a case rate or an episode or type of care system, there’s often a stop-loss mechanism negotiated as a part of that to take care of outliers or deviations from standard course of care.


The consumer’s in a better position when there’s a contract between a hospital and a plan.  Number one, they’re subject to lower costs.  The consumer is only subject to the costs that are spelled out in their benefit plan.  So the copays and deductibles contained in their contracts is what’s applied.  They’re also protected from balance billing.  Contracts will generally have a provision that will protect the consumer from any surcharges or the practice of balance billing for emergency or other covered services.

Of course, it’s not always possible for a patient to be served, particularly in an emergency situation, by a hospital that’s in their plan network, so plan enrollees will sometimes receive care out of network.  If a plan enrollee is seen at a noncontracted facility, more often than not the plan and facility will come to terms on a payment for those out-of-network services.  It’s important to note that plans must pay for all care until the patient’s medical condition is stabilized.  This is a matter of law.


Plans are permitted to pay for out-of-network services in a reasonable and customary manner, and we’ll get into that in a little bit.  Existing regulations spell out the criteria that is used to develop this reasonable and customary payment methodology.  Just quickly, these criteria are providers training, qualification, length of time, and practice; the nature of the services provided; the fees usually charged by the provider; prevailing provider rates charged in the geographic area; other aspects of the economics of the medical provider’s practice; and any unusual circumstances in the case.


There are times when a properly calculated, reasonable, and customary rate is in dispute.  When this is the case, hospitals have some avenues to avail themselves:  the plan’s statutorily required provider dispute resolution process.  They can enter into a more intense negotiation.  Hospitals can go to court if there’s a dispute for payment.  They can also file a complaint with the Department of Managed Health Care, which reviews pattern and practice issues.


So what is the impact to the consumer if there’s an out-of-network situation?  For plans, they could be subject to bill charges, as was discussed previously, which are not the same as contracted rates or necessarily reflective of the cost for providing the care.  It’s the bill.

Consumers are generally protected in out-of-network situations but can be exposed to some harm.  For instance, there’s an open question as to whether a patient can be balance billed despite the fact that there’s a ban on ER balance billing due to a court case that the Department of Managed Health Care pursued.  There’s an open question whether patients can still be balance billed if they’ve received unauthorized post-stabilization care in an inpatient hospital setting from a noncontracted physician.  


Now I’d like to move into this notion of post-stabilization, which I think is an important topic to expand upon.  Once an enrollee is clinically stabilized, a noncontracting hospital typically will notify the plan that the enrollee is in their care.  The cooperative exchange that results between hospitals and plans may result in the transfer of the patient to an in-network hospital so they can receive care from their in-network providers.

Unfortunately, some noncontracted hospitals were in the habit of performing care without notifying the enrollee’s plan.  This presented a challenge because, in the absence of a contract, providers or facilities were able to charge higher rates and place enrollees in the middle of billing disputes between their plans and hospitals.  Something that we were very opposed to.

In response, health plans, consumer groups, and labor groups supported AB 1203 in 2008 which mandated a process of communication between hospitals and health plans—noncontracting hospitals and health plans—in order to protect patients from being charged for unauthorized care.


Just to go into some of the specifics, there are health plan in-hospital obligations as a result of this bill.  Hospitals must contact the patient’s health plan.  Once the patient is stable, after making a documented effort to obtain coverage information, hospitals cannot bill health plans or enrollees for post-stabilization care if they do not make a reasonable effort to identify and contact the enrollee’s health plan.  Plans are required to respond to noncontracting hospitals within 30 minutes or the post-stabilization care is deauthorized.  So there are obligations on our industry as well.  Plans must provide their contact information for these purposes to hospitals statewide and to the Department of Managed Health Care for posting.


While this process has clarified things, it only works when the hospital lives up to the letter and spirit of the legal requirement to contact the health plan’s enrollee, using the contact information that’s provided by the plan, and use an appropriate standard of stabilization set out in law and common practice; otherwise, the situation can be confusing and costly for the patient.

So I’ll switch off, just very briefly as a closer, to some challenges in contracting.  I think from our perspective, and from a general perspective, contracting is beneficial to patients and people that have health insurance.  But sometimes there are challenges in obtaining these contracts, and I think the fundamental challenge is cost.  First, hospitals have some very real issues.  These include labor costs, retrofitting costs, and government underfunding of public programs, which is putting pressure on them and kinda has a ricochet effect onto the health plans because this causes them to shift some of those costs to commercial payers.  


Secondly, the overall historical trend of market consolidation, which is mentioned in your background sheet and has been looked at by the Health Affairs Journal, is putting pressure on costs as well.  When systems have market dominance in a particular geographic region, they’re more likely to demand contract provisions such as higher contracted rates or other provisions, recently barring transparency or quality data in the provisions; barring information like that from being disclosed by plans or requirements to contract systemwide with every hospital within the system, which may not be an advantageous contractual relationship with the plan.


So in conclusion, just to honor the time limit here—inpatient and outpatient hospital costs are the biggest component of the health care premium dollar in California.  It’s about 35 percent … or 35 cents on the dollar.  And they’re a very important part of the system.


So thank you for allowing us to make some comments as you explore ways to make it work better.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  I just have a couple of comments and then perhaps just a few follow-up questions.


First of all, thank you very much for being here.  Obviously, in an ideal world, making sure you have as much contracts as you can with hospitals is better, especially if the patient goes to the provider network to avoid any kind of problems.  But my questions are going to be around out-of-network providers, but more important, your post-stabilization.  Do you find that you have problems with post-stabilization and having to pay higher than normal expenses?  And what kind of problems have you experienced with that?


MR. LOUIZOS:  Our members have reported to us that there have been some issues around that—unauthorized care being performed.  I know there’s some differences of opinion on that issue, depending on whether you’re talking to a hospital or a health plan on the issue.  But when there is an authorized post-stabilization care, the health plan will be subject to bill charges.  Not all hospitals’ bill charges are similar.  Obviously, as we went over the chargemaster earlier, there’s no real justification to what goes into the cost and margin component.  So I have to speak broadly here because the contracted rate between hospitals and negotiator rate between plans are something that we don’t have direct access to.


Just broadly speaking, one of our plans reports that some hospitals can charge up to 40 percent, is a number I’ve heard, beyond the bill charges charged by other hospitals in a specific geographic region.  So there’s a high cost associated with it potentially.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Any other questions?  Thank you very much.


I think the next presenter we’re going to have is Jonathan Gluck.  Welcome.


MR. JONATHAN GLUCK:  Good morning, Senator Hernandez, Senator de León, and Assemblyman Monning.  Senator Hernandez, for you, we follow one Trojan with a double Trojan.  I went to school here.  My son is in school here.  So fight on.  [Laughter.]

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  His time is up.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Your time is up.  [Laughter.]


MR. GLUCK:  Given what I have paid to this school, I feel I could buy this podium.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Welcome.


MR. GLUCK:  Thank you.  My name is Jonathan Gluck, and I’m a senior executive and counsel at Heritage Provider Network.  Just to give you a brief background about Heritage—we are the largest IPA by geographic scope in the state of California, providing medical care to over 700,000 patients at locations ranging from San Luis Obispo to the north, Orange County to the south, Coachella Valley to the east, and the ocean to the west.  We employ over 500 physicians, contract with an additional 30,000 physicians, and have contracts with well over 100 hospitals.  We’ve been in business since 1979 and are a limited Knox-Keene licensed entity which allows us to take full risk for institutional claims; meaning, when our members go to the hospital, we pay the institutional claims.  We, however, do not sell an insurance product.


As an aside, an affiliate of Heritage—Heritage California ACO—was actually recently awarded by CMS one of the 32 Pioneer ACOs across the United States.  As we probably all know, an accountable care organization is an entity that is intended to provide higher quality of care and better health outcomes against a set budget.  We believe that this is what Heritage has been doing for 33 years.  In fact, we also believe what they are currently calling across the country “accountable care” is what many in California have been doing for a long time and is known as the California model of managed care.


Now, the managed care model is built on the concept of providing quality medical services at a lower cost by managing the care of the member.  It focuses on keeping the member healthy because the only way that you can make a go of it in managed care is if the member is kept healthy and out of the hospital and needing expensive hospital services.  So the focus is on preventive care, which is precisely where we see the Accountable Care Act going and the Accountable Care Organization Model going.  And through doing this, we believe we can keep health insurance affordable.


Now, having hospitals go noncontract—it is a business model and then seeking full bill charges—conflicts with the very existence of the California model of managed care.  We simply cannot provide a low-cost insurance product if we are expected to pay full bill charges when a patient goes to a noncontracted facility.  We understand that not all instances will a hospital choose to be contracted, but when that becomes a business model, especially for a large chain of hospitals, it conflicts with the California Model of Managed Care.


In addition to the monetary aspect, it also conflicts with some of the most important care management protocols that we use with our membership.  For example, when a member is hospitalized, typically we engage in post-discharge planning.  That post-discharge planning will involve assuring that the patient receives a follow-up within seven days of discharge because it is well known that the readmission rate doubles if a patient does not receive that seven-day follow-up with their physician.  It includes medicine reconciliation because in many instances, a patient will be prescribed new medication in the hospital which does not work with the prior medication regimen they’re on.  So we will have a pharmacist go to the house to make sure that the patient’s medicine all works together.  When you’re in a noncontracted facility that does not either inform you that the patient is there or let you do the post-discharge planning, it becomes very difficult to provide those types of care services to the membership.


Now, obviously we’re not going to be contracted with all hospitals at all times.  Business disputes happen.  And when we aren’t in a contracted situation, the Gould factors are used to determine out-of-network contract payments.  And typically they work fine.  There are certain modifications that I think—or clarifications that should be made, such as the meaning of the word “charges” in the Gould factors, because if you look, for example, at the workers’ compensation arena, charges is understood to clearly mean “the charges that are generally accepted and paid in the community.”  It doesn’t mean bill charges, precisely because, as we saw on the slides previously, bill charges really bear little relationship to reality.  So a clarification of what “charges” means would clearly be helpful.


However, in most instances when we pay under the Gould factors, everybody’s fine and we go on our way.  Now, the payment under the Gould factors are also backed up by the post-stabilization transfer rules, that I’m not going to go into because they were previously described.  These post-stabilization transfer rules do typically work well with the hospitals that follow the rule.  The problem is there are certain hospitals and hospital chains that are not honest when it comes to post-stabilization.  And this can be proven by simple statistics.  As I said, we contract with well over 100 hospitals, and we have an additional, probably, 50 hospitals or so in our network that are noncontracted.


In a typical noncontracted setting, when patients go to the ER, they’re admitted for a one- or two-day length of stay approximately 36 percent of the time.  At the time of admission, the patient’s not deemed stable, because if they were stable, we would transfer them to a contracted facility so we can provide them these higher levels of service that we’re accustomed to and which we believe keeps them healthier.  It’s also been explained to me—I’m not a doctor but I’ve asked the doctors who have told me that a one- and two-day length of stay is less likely to be a necessary admission than a seven-day length of stay, for example.  If you have a heart attack and you go to the hospital, you’re not going to be admitted for a one- or two-day length of stay.  You’re going to have a much longer length of stay.  So if you look at those really short stays, those are the ones where you can tell that it may be because the emergency department is being used not as a care provision mechanism but more as a revolving door into the hospital mechanism.

Now, there’s one chain in particular—and you’ll hear from them later, and that’s the Prime chain of hospitals—where we have done a study of our patients who wind up in Prime facilities, and we’re not contracted with the Prime facilities.  As I said, 36 percent in noncontract and non-Prime facilities.  At the Prime facilities, 64 percent of our patients who go to the emergency room are admitted for a one- or two-day length of stay.  That is simply not statistically credible.  It doesn’t make any sense other than the fact that the emergency room is being used as an admission mechanism.  We then are expected to pay—or they seek full bill charges, and if full bill charges are not paid, we wind up being sued.  It also has the effect of not providing the best care of the patient, because as I said, we cannot provide those post-discharge planning protocols.  So it is both monetarily and patient carewise simply not … it doesn’t work.

With that, I’ll end my prepared comments, and be happy to answer any questions.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I’d like to just kind of follow up on some of your comments, especially with regard to post-stabilization and dealing with out-of-network hospitals and your concerns.  You just made a comment about 64 percent of our emergency rooms, I believe, which was through the Prime chain, is unsustainable.  I mean, what kind of problems have you had?  Can you explain any of those to us and how you’ve been trying to resolve those to hopefully try to reduce that 64 percent to kind of reduce your overall health care costs, and what have you done to reach out to them?


MR. GLUCK:  Well, the 64 percent is typically because we don’t know that that person has been admitted to the hospital.  They are admitted in what is called a “nonstabilized” state.  So they’re not stabilized in the emergency room.  They are then admitted to the hospital.  And after one or two days, we get a phone call saying—or the patient has just discharged, which is typically what happens, and we’ll find out afterwards that that patient was in the hospital for one or two days.  They were discharged.  Typically, we’ll get that notification either after discharge or when we receive the bill.  So we never get that post-stabilization phone call because they were never stable.  


Now, this is what I’m saying happens 64 percent of the time to all patients who wind up in a Prime ER.  At our other facilities, it’s 36 percent of the time.  So what we believe is happening is that most hospitals are doing a fair job of determining when someone truly needs to be admitted to the hospital in an emergency situation and they will notify us after stabilization.  At that point, if they’ve been discharged, then we’ll take care of the patient.  If they’ve not been discharged, we may move them to a contracted facility.  But at the Prime facilities, we don’t get notified because there have been no … there’s no stabilization determination.  So under the rules, there’s no notification.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Well, let me just follow up with that because under AB 1203, which was enacted in 2008, a noncontracting hospital is required to contact an enrollee’s health care service plan prior to providing post-stabilization care.  So if that’s the case, how is this law working, and is it adequately enforced, and do you think that anything needs to be done to change that?  Because I’m hearing some disturbing examples of this.

MR. GLUCK:  I think that the leading cause of this is that the stabilization determination is made by the treating physician.  So if a hospital—and again, I want to make it clear that this is not the majority of the hospitals that we deal with.  If a hospital wants to game the system, it is very simple to tell your treating physicians to write on the chart “Not stable for transfer.”  And once that determination has been made and written on the chart, it is virtually impossible to contest that determination because you have a physician at the bedside saying, “Not stable for transfer.”  You have a later contest that may happen in a court of law a year or two later in which you’ll have a physician who’s going to testify, saying, I’ve looked at all the charts.  This doesn’t appear to me to be an issue where the patient wasn’t stable.  But again, it’s going against the treating physician who has written “Not stable for transfer.”  I’m looking at it simply as 36 and 64 don’t make sense if everybody’s playing fair.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  Any other questions?  


Senator de León.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  Mr. Gluck, let me ask you a question.  This is an opportunity for me to learn also with regards to Medi-Cal reimbursement rates, even being a member of the Health Committee.  I thank Dr. Ed Hernandez as well, as chair on the health side, the Health Committee—the Assembly side, Bill Monning—for the opportunity to be here.  Thank you, Ed, for hosting this event here in Los Angeles.


Why would an administrator … I’m asking you to extrapolate.  You don’t have to extrapolate unless you think you know the answer.  Why would an administrator direct a physician to write on the file “Not ready to transfer?”


MR. GLUCK:  Because if a member is admitted to the hospital in a noncontracted facility and you’re paying, for example, per diems, they get to bill for those extra days, plus for all of the services that are incurred during those extra days.  So it is simply a mechanism to generate additional revenue.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  So if that patient is not in need of intensive care that billing has been applied, you would say on the record that nonetheless that still takes place.

MR. GLUCK:  Oh, absolutely it takes place.  I have no doubt.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  Okay.  So that being said then—that being said—would that—and it’s an open-ended question, obviously, to my colleagues here, given my limited experience and knowledge with regards to reimbursement rates, so I’m being educated at the same time here.  If I direct, as an administrator, a doctor to write “X, Y, and Z” and that patient didn’t need “X, Y, and Z” but, nonetheless, they were able to draw down on the reimbursement rate for these services that were provided, even though these services were not needed, does that constitute fraud?


MR. GLUCK:  I would think so.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  Okay.


MR. GLUCK:  It’s not my legal opinion.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  No, I just wanted to get your opinion.  So that would constitute fraud of taxpayer dollars.


MR. GLUCK:  I would think so, absolutely.

SENATOR DE LEÓN:  Okay.  I just wanted to …


MR. GLUCK:  I mean, if we’re the payer, it may not be taxpayer dollars, but if it’s being done to Medicare members, for example …


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  And that’s taxpayer dollars.


MR. GLUCK:  Absolutely.  Absolutely.


SENATOR DE LEÓN:  That’s taxpayer dollars.  Okay, thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I think Assemblymember Monning may have had a comment or question, and I have one final question.


ASSEMBL MEMBER MONNING:  And my question … thank you, also, for your testimony.  So your examples of this disparate rate of hospital admission or nonstable finding—has your organization filed complaints with any governmental agencies?  If so, which ones?  And what’s been your experience with follow-up or investigation of your concerns?


MR. GLUCK:  We’ve not filed anything with any governmental agency.  We are in a dispute with Prime.  We were paying usual and customary rates for the noncontracted admissions to the Prime facilities.  They sued us, seeking full bill charges for those admissions, and we filed a cross-complaint raising these allegations.  We did not initially pursue them through the governmental agencies.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  So you’re pursuing civil remedies.


MR. GLUCK:  Yes.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Let me just ask a question.  Let me just change the direction slightly.  Obviously, from a contractual stand point of view, from a payment stand point of view, I can understand the incentive to try to keep that patient in longer to generate more revenue for out-of-network.  But I think the question that is absolutely most important—the effect on the patient and the patient’s ability or right to be able to go back to within that network—where’s the patient harm?  Can you address that at all?


MR. GLUCK:  Well, the patient’s harmed in two ways.  I mean, I think … and I’m not a doctor.  You are a physician.  I think everyone understands that hospital-acquired infections are a serious concern.  A hospital is a good place to be if you need to be in a hospital.  If you don’t need to be in a hospital, a hospital is not a safe place.  Lots of things can go wrong in a hospital.  So subjecting a patient who doesn’t need to be in the hospital to those additional days merely to generate revenue is obviously not a good thing. 


It also, as I said, affects the ability to provide for the complete care of that patient through the lack of discharge planning, the lack of follow-up care, the lack of learning about what was done in the hospital that may conflict with other things that are going on with the patient.  It’s really having someone outside the system gaming the system in a way that doesn’t allow the complete management of that patient by the doctors who that patient is familiar with.

SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  Thank you very much for your time.


Okay, we’re going to be in subsection number two of item number four.  This is “Patient Encounters With Out-of-Plan Network Providers.”  We’ve got three individuals to be speaking.  The first one is Sandy Taylor-Davey, granddaughter of a hospitalized patient, followed by Beth Capell, Health Access California, and then we’re going to have a Kaiser physician, John Shohfi.  We’ll first begin with Ms. Taylor.


Welcome.


MS. SANDY TAYLOR-DAVEY:  Thank you for having me.  I just want to state I went to school in Boston, so I’ll break the Trojan streak.  [Laughter.]


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  We’ll allow you more extra time.


MS. TAYLOR-DAVEY:  Oh, thank you.


I’m a little nervous.  Obviously, I don’t know most of the people in the room, so I’m going to tell the story from some prepared remarks.  After following Mr. Gluck, I find it very interesting because the story involves a Prime health care hospital, and my grandmother was well-insured with Medicare and supplemental insurance.

This story is about Dorothy Taylor, my grandmother.  She became my grandmother when she was only 40.  She stepped in to become one of my main caretakers because my parents were so young.  Growing up, she wasn’t a frail, old grandma.  She wasn’t knitting blankets in a rocking chair.  She was fun, loving, and encouraged me to follow my dreams when the odds were against me.  In the last decade of her life, she faced some serious consequences of Type 2 diabetes.  After enduring a year of dialysis, one of my aunts successfully donated a kidney to my grandma through a transplant program here at USC.  I was away at college during the time she received her kidney, but she had a new lease on life in her voice and attitude.


In early 2005, my grandparents were broadsided by a young woman who ran a stop sign, and unfortunately, while they both survived, the injuries my grandmother sustained that day were such a marked setback, she never fully recovered from that accident.  Unable to exercise much and falling back into poor eating habits, my grandmother put on a bit more weight, and unfortunately, the diabetes started to take a toll on her heart.


In late 2007, she became a participant in a study that later led to the FDA-approved device and process that allows opening a failing heart valve by a procedure starting through an opening in the groin.  This is ideal for high-risk patients that may not otherwise survive the open heart surgery previously used to treat cardiac valve replacement.  Only a handful of hospitals were allowed to do the temporary procedure while the study was undergoing.  The two nearest were Cedar Sinai and a large campus hospital in Dallas, Texas.  The device and FDA process and procedure were approved in June 2010.


My grandmother had gone through her regularly scheduled appointments from June 5, 2009 until the day before she ended up at the ER at West Anaheim Medical Center, a Prime health care hospital.  Due to the kidney complications, my grandmother had, unfortunately, often occurrences of urinary tract infections (or UTIs).  They could occur at any moment, and her demeanor would change instantly with a fever.  I used to joke that her real personality came out with the fever.  She didn’t find it very funny.  We knew the routines of UTIs and we knew the process for finding a remedy.  If you had enough warning, you could get her to the kidney specialist to get the appropriate prescriptions without involving the paramedics or the hospital.  If it went too long, she could faint or require EMT assistance to get to the hospital.


This particular instance in June 2009 found my grandparents home alone and in need of EMT services as my grandfather couldn’t drive anymore.  If you’ve ever had a high fever, you know you can’t think very clearly.  My grandma was delirious and couldn’t remind my grandpa nor the EMT staff that she needed to go to the Orange Coast Memorial Hospital in Fountain Valley, as all of her primary care doctors are based out of that hospital and a working relationship had already been established with Cedar Sinai.  
The ambulance took my grandmother to West Anaheim Medical Center.


My aunt arrived at the hospital at the same time as the ambulance and insisted in explaining the situation to the staff.  Immediately, she started to experience issues with the staff and expectations as it related to treating my grandmother.  My aunt called me and asked for me to come to the hospital as soon as possible since I was the power of attorney over my grandparents’ affairs and had the most experience in dealing with these matters.  To be perfectly honest, I thought my aunt was exaggerating the situation on the phone.  She kept insisting that West Anaheim Medical Center was claiming that my grandmother was in full-blown heart failure and had pneumonia.  She also told me that the heart doctor at the hospital came by and started telling her and my grandmother that they would be fixing my grandmother’s heart valve issue.  This seemed so farfetched to me that I only assumed my aunt had gotten caught up in the emotion of the ER.  Besides, my grandmother had just been to her regular doctor the day before.  How could he or all of the other appointments in the weeks prior have missed this?  My aunt had to be mistaken.


While I was on my way to the hospital, my aunt requested the ER coordinate with the assigned doctor from Cedar Sinai.  This was commonplace for us to request this at any other doctor or hospital in the previous months, and we never experienced an issue.  The ER doctor at West Anaheim Medical Center claimed that when they called Cedar Sinai, no one returned the call.  We later found out from the doctor at Cedar Sinai a call was never placed or received from the staff at West Anaheim Medical.  It was my family that reached out to the Cedar Sinai doctor eventually that evening.


My aunt also requested for my grandmother to be transferred to Orange Coast Memorial so we could get her under the care of her primary care doctors.  The request was denied with no explanation.  Upon my arrival, I began asking questions and found the staff to be very unhelpful.  No one could provide a straight answer on what was wrong with my grandmother, who I had now seen with my own eyes and could see she was clearly experiencing the delusions of a fever.  This was exactly the same as we had seen with the other previous urinary tract infections.


I also expressed my request to have my grandmother transferred to the Orange Coast Memorial Hospital and was denied, as the staff said my grandmother was unstable.  I asked what defined unstable and was advised she was experiencing septicemia and pneumonia.  The answers were vague, and the staff became sarcastic in tone when speaking to me and my family.  This continued for some time.  When the doctor eventually came by, I expected he would at least be clearer on the matters at hand.  Instead, he said in front of my grandmother that she could die on the trip to Orange Coast Memorial so they wouldn’t allow the transfer.  So now he’s frightened my grandmother about the trip to Orange Coast, hasn’t provided much more information, and also stated to me directly that the hospital was fully capable and allowed to be performing the heart valve procedure themselves.  When I explained that this could only be done by an approved hospital in the program, like Cedar Sinai, his staff began berating Cedar Sinai.  They claimed the number of malpractice suits and other horror stories about Cedars made West Anaheim Medical Center the obvious choice.


For the next few hours, the only information gleamed was that perhaps my grandmother did not have pneumonia but had a fever of 101 and might be experiencing septicemia.  After six hours, the only person that was informative, helpful, and insightful was Dr. Baskovich.  He provided me with the legal reason why transferring her was not allowable until she was stable.  He also advised he would look into the treatment of her fever.  It’s been six hours.

Shortly after speaking to him, the staff gave my grandmother Tylenol.  One single hour later, my grandmother was conversing normally and joking with my now-husband.  She also stated at this point that she had a very painful area on her backside.  She had acquired multiple bedsores while lying on the ER bed where her skin had been touching the plastic.  Even after her fever subsided, West Anaheim Medical Center insisted my grandmother stay as they were going to do the heart valve procedure.  This was not advised by Cedars nor requested by my family.  They refused to sign on her transfer order.  We hadn’t been successful in trying to find a private transport either since we couldn’t get a doctor to sign her order.  My grandmother was terrified of open heart surgery and begged us to stay with her.  My family kept vigil with her for the entire stay at West Anaheim Medical Center for that very reason.  We felt trapped by that hospital, and it felt like an episode of Twilight Zone.


Later in the evening we found out from staff on my grandmother’s floor that the reason it took so long for a bed to be made available for my grandmother was that a patient had to be transferred out of the hospital to allow space for her.  My grandmother was well insured with Medicare and supplemental health insurance.  I believe Secure Horizons.  It’s been a few years.  The nurse mentioned that the hospital had been transferring people out all day to make room for the patients.

Eventually, two days later, my grandmother was transferred to Orange Coast Memorial Hospital and all turned out well.  She didn’t have pneumonia.  She didn’t have septicemia.  Her temporary heart valve was performing as expected, according to Cedar Sinai.  The only issue was related to her kidney and a urinary tract infection.


The entire situation at West Anaheim Medical was incredibly stressful.  I don’t think I’ve ever experienced something so bizarre in my life.  They just wouldn’t let her out.  What if my grandmother had been alone?  What if my family didn’t know so much about her care?  In the end, when my grandmother did pass away in mid-2010, it was peaceful and it was on her terms.  We were by her side as usual when she took her last breath, but it was on her terms and there wasn’t an ounce of fear.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much for that compelling statement.  I appreciate your time here.


MS. TAYLOR-DAVEY:  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Next presenter is Beth Capell, Health Access California.


MS. BETH CAPELL:  Good morning.  My name’s Beth Capell.  I’m here on behalf of Health Access California.  We’re California’s health care consumer advocacy organization, and we have worked on most or all of the legislation that’s referred to in your binder that makes up the protections that California consumers currently have.  Plainly, however, those are not sufficient, and plainly, also, the concerns we had when the Salas bill was enacted that relying on the physician’s order would create problems.  Sadly, our fears have been realized in the ensuing years.  We thought at that time that the treating physician might have an incentive to hold onto the patient.  We find now in some instances that is correct.

I want to talk about two … I want to put this in the context of coordinating care and providing good patient care, and I want to take the liberty of speaking from several personal examples as well as some policy work that’s currently underway.


In 2007, my ex-husband was bicycling to work one day and fell off his bicycle and was taken to the UC Davis Emergency Room.  He called me from the ambulance to say, Hey, you’re going to have to take care of the kid tonight.  But I thought I should go, even as an ex-wife, and sit with him in the emergency room and make sure that he got good care.  When I got there … being in a trauma emergency room is quite an experience.  I’ve been in normal emergency rooms, but a trauma emergency room, it seems like there are five people to do what one person does in a regular emergency room.  Quite an amazing array of staff.

He was being assessed for a concussion and for broken bones.  A nurse came by and I said, He’s a Kaiser patient.  Have you checked with Kaiser?  I’m his ex-wife.  I don’t know what medications he’s taking.  I don’t know if he’s allergic to antibiotics.  I don’t know.  Have you checked?  And the nurse very helpfully said, The billing office is calling their billing office.  This didn’t strike me as a clinical answer.


Sometime later, several eager surgical interns came by to chat with us about what turned out to be a broken hip; about the many delightful procedures they had available at UC Davis to replace broken hips and all the cool devices that they had.  My husband—ex-husband by then; sorry—was feeling fairly cheerful because they’d been effective at pain management, and so he really wanted to chat about these different hip replacements and the opportunity to have surgery there.  And I said, Well, you know, he’s a Kaiser patient.  If he’s stable, could he be transferred to Kaiser to do the surgery?  And I was told that Kaiser preferred that the surgery be done there.  I checked to see if that … I said, Well, have you checked with Kaiser to see if that’s true?  And he, at that point, said that they shouldn’t mess around with me because I knew what the laws were.


Shortly thereafter, the treating physician came to see us and reported that indeed he did not have a concussion, that he had a badly broken hip.  And I asked at that point if he was stable to be transferred.  I will never know—and as I try to reconstruct this in my mind—I will never know if they would have said to me, He is stable; we are transferring him to Kaiser, if I had not asked.  So I don’t know.  Maybe they would have; maybe they would not have.  I would hope they would have.


He was within fifteen minutes put in the hall.  We couldn’t get a glass of water.  We couldn’t get any pain management.  We waited over an hour, and I was asked not to wait with him.  When I inquired, they said, He’s now Kaiser’s patient. We have nothing to do with him, even though he was still on a gurney at the UC Davis Emergency Room.  I found this troubling on a number of levels in terms of the quality of care.


In contrast, a few years later my daughter, who was then 18, began having seizures which we discovered when school called me to say, Why didn’t you tell us she had seizures?  To which the answer was, I didn’t know.  I called—you know, at that point I’m just an upset mother, you know?—and I called her pediatric neurologist and I got through, and they said, Well, he’s in Mongolia.  And I said, Well, okay.  So is the other guy there?  So this is a doctor we have never seen, have never spoken with.  I’m put through to him, and because she is also a patient at Kaiser where they have invested in electronic medical records, he says to me, Oh, let’s see here.  The MRI from last summer is negative.  And he goes through on the phone with me every test she has had in eighteen years; all of the care.  He can see, looking at a screen, what kind of patient he is dealing with and offer a course of treatment that indeed stabilized her.


The reason I tell these two stories in juxtaposition is that—and this goes to testimony many of us heard earlier this week at the Health Benefits Exchange for people with significant conditions or chronic conditions.  It is possible to regard emergency room visits as preventable and something that we should assure that we minimize, if not eliminate, emergency room visits for people with chronic conditions.  That is something we heard testimony on, presentations on, earlier this week at the Health Benefits Exchange.  The hotel and restaurant employees are doing this in Atlantic City and Las Vegas for their employees and have dramatically reduced emergency room use and hospital use and improved health for their workers by intensively manage.


No purchaser, no plan can do that unless, when a patient shows up in an emergency room, they know what care they’re getting and what they’re presenting for.  It’s important that that kind of care coordination go on in order to improve the quality of care.  I don’t know that it would have mattered in my ex-husband’s situation if they had called the Kaiser doctor.  But there are certainly other circumstances—a heart attack, kidney failure, other things—where it would have mattered.

It strikes me that we need to revisit 1203.  We need to revisit this and look at it from the perspective of improving clinical care and improving the coordination of care in order to better manage care.  

Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.


The next presenter is going to be John Shohfi, M.D., Kaiser physician.


Please tell me you didn’t do your training at USC.  [Laughter.]


DR. JOHN SHOHFI:  No, I was back East.  I’m with Boston, but I wasn’t in Boston, just back East.


Thank you for inviting me.  Appreciate it.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  Welcome.


DR. SHOHFI:  So I feel like some have stolen my thunder already.  I have some experiences from a different perspective that look at some of the things you’ve heard about.


I’m an emergency physician by training.  I’m with, as you noted, with Kaiser Permanente—southern California Permanente specifically—and I’ve got a role for the past ten years of overseeing a program that has a moniker of EPRP.  And I only say that because it’ll come up from time to time, but it stands for the Emergency Perspective Review Program.  You’ve actually heard about it; you just didn’t know you were hearing about it.  


The presentation we just heard, when she asked, Did you call Kaiser?—well, there’s a 1-800 number for the state of California, if you’re in an emergency department, to call Kaiser, and that’s been in place since 1989.  We actually started that program in ’89 in response to an obvious need to plug our patients into our system when they weren’t in our system, especially in the emergency department.  We have almost 6½ million members now.  We’ve had millions for years, and we’ve had good medical records for years.  We have incredibly robust medical records now.

What we envisioned—and we needed to get together with the communities’ emergency physicians—was a way to come up with a system that would serve them while they’re treating our members and would serve our members.  So if you’ve got Kaiser and you show up at UC Davis and you’ve got medical history, medical problems, you can either just guess what they have, ask the person who you give the morphine to if they know what they have, or you can make a phone call.  And 24/7, 365, I’ve got four to five physicians, emergency board-certified physicians, and I’ve got 78, minimum, critical care ED nurses, and they’re sitting there to do one thing:  answer the phone, look up on the computer, and tell you everything we know about that patient.  Tell you what medications they’re on, what allergies they’ve got, what studies they’ve just had.  The MRI—Let me look at that MRI for you.  Certainly, there’s people that fall down with previous hip replacements.  Now you’ve got to know, What does that look that?


Well, let me tell you what the hip replacement looked like on the last x-ray.

So you can imagine.

When I first trained—and I’m only 50, so I’m not that old—but when I first trained, you honestly were taught—and all emergency physicians probably are—taught, Act like you’re in a vacuum:  you’ve never seen that patient before, you’ll never see them again, and they’ll never see anybody again.  So just do everything you possibly can, don’t leave anything out, and assume the worst.  Well, it’s not that way anymore.  It’s certainly not for a Kaiser member in southern California.  It’s not that way at all.


We’ve had a very successful program.  We’ve had almost universal … well, there has been universal acceptance and use of that program.  Of all those Kaiser members—you know, many of them to our own.  I work in the emergency department, but we have about 110,000 or so calls a year of our patients landing out in the community emergency departments, non-Kaiser.


What we do is take those calls and help manage that patient with them by providing the information.  What next?  What do they need?  Anything from, They had a bad stomach ache and they were vomiting, and now I’ve gotten them some fluids and some medicine and they’re doing better, but I want them to be seen.  I’ll get them in.  I’ll get them with their doctor.  You want one day, two days?  What do you want?  That’s a load off an emergency physician’s mind, and it’s obviously better for … we talked about quality?  That’s quality.  Or what about, you know, I sutured this up; I need you to look at the laceration and then take out the stitches.


Got it.

We arrange all those things, and especially care.  One of the other dispositions is, They’re stable.  We’ve taken care of them.  I’ve made sure they didn’t have the head injury, but the hip is fractured.  They’re certainly stable now.  Let’s go ahead and … you know, we’ll take them.  We get ahold of our orthopedist.  We bring them into our hospital.  We do the hip surgery, and it’s better than just doing the surgery.  You have to manage that patient.  There’s all sorts of follow-up and rehab, etc.  My orthopedist?  They’re going to manage that patient.  They’d rather do the surgery and then stay with that patient for the rest of … in perpetuity, I suppose.


Anyhow, you can see the obvious advantage of that.


Since ’89, again, we’ve been doing this, and we’ve heard discussions about how post-stabilization care has sort of … we’ve entered this realm where the stabilization definition has sort of been misused perhaps.  I want to make sure everyone knows that’s a fairly new phenomena; that the definition of “stability’ comes from federal and state … it’s in the federal and state laws.  It’s in tall(?) language, and it’s very clear.  If I sit in a room with five or ten of my colleagues, we all get it.  It’s one of those things we know.  We know what stable is.  We can look at the patient and know—here’s the numbers, here’s the patient.  We know.  And our history is, is of collegiality and of agreement.  Very, very rare where we don’t agree.  That’s fantastic!  That’s because we’re all sort of trained in a similar fashion.  We know when someone is concerning and sick, and we know when someone will need further work but they’re stable.  So that’s the history.

The more recent situation with the hospital system that’s been mentioned is a change, and I think it’s very interesting to understand that in many instances, we’ve dealt with those hospitals since ’89—pre-acquisition of those hospitals; same doctor groups collegially working, helping with dispositions, transferring, following acquisition.  No calls.  Stopped calling Kaiser because, Don’t want to call Kaiser because we might have to do something we don’t want to do.  Or, if we happen to get in touch because maybe the members get behind them, a family member calls—almost like the insistence we heard—then we call.  I’ve heard cases, I’ve been a part of cases where I’m virtually begging to provide clinical information.  But, I’m sorry, we’re no longer allowed to talk.  We’re no longer allowed to discuss.  We’re no longer allowed to ask for medical information.  Even cases where I personally have said, I don’t even want to talk about post-stability; I just want to ask, Do you need any information to help manage that patient’s care?



Not allowed to.

Clearly not a quality argument to be made there.


Besides the fact that, of course, we do for all the quality reasons you’ve heard, we do want to bring our members back in.  We have a fairly robust medical record.  If I leave you out here or there, everywhere, I now have a dispersed medical record.  I want to keep your medical record in-house.  I want you coming back to your doctors.  I want your follow-up in-house.  And the discharge planning we heard about?  That’s real.  Avoiding readmissions, keeping the total cost of health care down—that’s all very important to us.


But I just want to give you that perspective from a physician’s perspective, who not only practices emergency medicine and deals with stability and has been … I deal with post-stabilization care decisions all the time and make them as the majority of the community of emergency medicine does.  And nationally it’s the same.  I practiced back East; that’s how we understood it.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I have a couple of questions.  First of all, I applaud Kaiser for the EPRP program to make sure that their patients are taken care of and that there is an interaction with the out-of-network plans.  When I see patients—I obviously don’t see them on an emergency room basis—but when my patients come in, I do like you said:  everything I possibly can to make sure that either the primary care doc, the specialist … I’ll send a letter; make sure that I get that person on the phone; find out if we can share medical information on the patient’s behalf.  And there is always, like you said, collegiality, there is always a professionalism, but more importantly, there’s always some kind of an agreement.  I never, have ever had an instance where a physician has not wanted to talk to me about the ultimate care of a patient.  


It’s a little disturbing to hear you say that that’s not going on with … I’m assuming you’re talking about Prime, because you didn’t mention that.  So is that correct?

DR. SHOHFI:  Yes.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  So my concern and my question to you is:  What is the physician’s reaction when you talk to them and they say they don’t want to share that information?  Is there any kind of indication why that is?  Because I can’t imagine that those individuals went to a different type of medical school that would teach them not to interact professionally with their colleagues.  What kind of interaction are you getting with those physicians?  Are they just saying that they’re not allowed to?  Because that’s very disturbing.


DR. SHOHFI:  Yes, it is.  Very early on—remember, we deal with these hospitals that existed through, prior to, during, and then after acquisition, and we have … I have heard cases myself.  I have reviewed cases where staff and M.D.s explained that they’re no longer allowed to discuss cases or they’re no longer allowed because (quote) “Administration no longer allows us to transfer patients.”  So skirting all the issues of why or when, other than “Administration no longer allows us to do that.”  And we’ve tried, of course.  You’ll try live to say, So you don’t want to know anything about this patient?

I’m not allowed to do that.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I still have concerns on multiple levels.  Number one, the patient care, the risk, etc., but also the standard of care in the community and to that physician or that provider; that standard of care and the liability for that provider.  So I have a real concern for that provider within that network.


DR. SHOHFI:  I would agree.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Any other questions?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  If I could follow up.  Doctor, thank you for being here today and for helping frame this.  You’ve provided the examples of your experiences with Prime.  Have you had a similar experience with any other hospital system that’s not part of Kaiser?


DR. SHOHFI:  Since Prime, in the last couple of years there’s a very small, newer system in California, that I believe only owns two to three hospitals, that has implemented similar policies in southern California only, and it happens to be related … the management group is an ED management group it’s engaged, I understand.  It’s a group that has ties to the Prime hospitals but not to Prime itself, but I don’t know all the intricacies of that at all.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Focusing on your examples and experience with Prime, following up on Dr. Hernandez—as a physician, the standard of care to turn down an affirmative offer for patient information that might inform treatment of a patient, even short of potential malpractice in the legal arena in terms of just the standard of care that is expected as a condition of your licensing, have you or others brought this practice to the attention of any licensing or regulatory committees or agencies?


DR. SHOHFI:  We have.  We’ve been attempting to try to meet with folks for some time now to try to sound the alarm about this quality of care concern as well as the misapplication of an inappropriate stability determination.  So we’ve been sounding those alarms.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  And with what agencies?


DR. SHOHFI:  Well, now you’re going to get me because I don’t drive that effort.  I’m doing mostly clinical work.  I do know that in our disputes with Prime, we had … I guess about three years ago we were challenged by Prime on our stability determinations and bill payment; so where we determined post-stabilization began or did not begin.  And the complaint from Prime to the DMHC was taken up by the DMHC, and they reviewed some volume of cases to try to understand.  Their primary conclusion was they agreed with our stances.  So we were using conservative, They’re obviously stable here.  Retrospectively, despite them staying in the hospital and not getting notification, the DMHC primarily agreed.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  And I do know some of this is the subject of litigation related to billing, but I’m particularly interested from a public policy point of view and a patient protection point of view the appropriate investigative bodies having the information necessary.  So perhaps in our follow-up today we can do a better job of finding out what types of oversight from the appropriate agencies is taking place and if not should be taking place.


DR. SHOHFI:  Right.  I appreciate that.  And really, AB 1203 was meant to force that clinical communication.  That’s really what’s in the letter of that, and so, to get a true enforcement of that would be ideal; to say, Hey listen, that clinical conversation is what’s important here to start.  Then we have the post-stability stuff as the next step.  But we’ve got to get that clinical conversation.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you, Doctor.


**SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  If you don’t mind real quickly, Assembly-member—before we move to the Assemblymember who’s going to ask a question—let me just give this opportunity to introduce to my right a good friend of mine and a colleague, Assemblymember Mike Eng, who also sits on the Assembly Health Committee.  Thank you, Assemblymember, for being here, and I believe you had either a comment or a question.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MIKE ENG:  Thank you, Senator.  A real quick question.  Thank you very much, Senator Hernandez, and thank you to my colleague Mr. Monning.  I enjoyed serving with Senator Hernandez in the Assembly.

My question is this.  I guess I’m … first of all, thank you very much, Dr. Shohfi, for coming here.  My background’s kind of interesting.  I actually helped run a Kaiser hospital emergency room for three years way back in the day.  I’m so old I actually ran it with the original Henry J. Kaiser.  [Laughter.]  As you know, back then, as we do now … oh, back then the emergency room fee was $16.48, and fully half the patients that came in through those doors could not afford that.  As you know, back then, as is true today, emergency rooms cannot turn away anyone.  Emergency rooms have to provide reasonable and customary care, at which point there is stabilization of the patient.  


My question is this:  Is there a definition of stabilization which you think is clear enough for the industry so that if we had five physicians from different organizations treating the same patient, that stabilization would be a consensus with all five?  Or do you think that there is such unclarity that there needs to be more definition?  And why would that be when you all go to the same … by the way, I’m not a physician.  I just play one in the Legislature.  But the question is:  Why would there be that disparity?  Because I think that really goes to the heart of some of the issues that we’re facing today in terms of the subject matter of the litigation, in terms of billing practices, and concerning community practices.

As you know, many times we would tell the patient that they were stabilized and ready to go home, and yet, the family of that patient said, Are you crazy?  This person is not stable by any means.  And I think when there’s that difference of opinion, whether it’s in the community or it’s amongst professionals, that invites interpretations that could lead to the problem that we have right now.


DR. SHOHFI:  I believe, although it’s jargon, the EMTALA language that’s existed and has been established, it does work.  Again, I probably wasn’t very clear but it has worked.  There is virtual consensus.  Again, there are rare disagreements, and when that comes on we say, All right, you’re with the patient.  But rare.  Honestly, rare.  A hundred thousand cases a year—we agree on 99.9 percent of them.  Until this.  This is an attempt at a new standard.  This is an attempt to change the standard.  So I don’t think EMTALA is inadequate.  I think we have a problem with what’s happened in trying to apply something different in California that’s not consistent with 1203.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.


We’re now going to move on to “Hospital Perspective.”  We have three individuals in subsection number three, which is Dietmar Grellmann, Senior Vice President, Managed Care & Professional Services, California Hospital Association.  We have Michael J. Sarrao, Esq., Vice President and General Counsel, Prime Healthcare Management.  And Reece Ivan Fawley, Executive Director of Health Plan Strategy and Transplantation, UCSF Medical Center and Benioff Children’s Hospital.

Also, before we get started, if you don’t mind, sir, I’ve just got a couple more announcements.  From Carol Liu’s office we have Adam Carter here representing the Senator as well, and from Steven Bradford, Assemblymember, we have Michael Castillo as well—the reps.  Welcome and thank you.


And welcome.


MR. DIETMAR GRELLMANN:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chair, members of the panel.  My name is Dietmar Grellmann.  I’m with the California Hospital Association.  CHA represents all the hospitals in California; a large diversity of hospitals:  children’s hospitals, teaching hospitals, community hospitals, district hospitals.

What I’d like to do with my testimony is talk to you about why hospitals contract, the advantages of contracting, and then why in some instances hospitals aren’t contracted and some of the difficulties that creates.


By and large, in a state as large as ours and complex as ours and diverse as ours, the system works remarkably well.  Hospitals and health plans both want to have contracts and work hard to get contracts with each other that meet their mutual needs.  For the hospital, it’s to have a basic level of revenue that you can plan on so that you can maintain operations, meet the community’s needs, either new services or new technologies, and for the health plan to be able to provide affordable care.  In this respect, we view ourselves as partners with the health plans, and it benefits the patients, and the system actually does work pretty good.


Then there are those instances where there aren’t contracts, and why does that happen?  Why does a hospital not get a contract?  One example is in communities where there aren’t very many insured patients, and so, health plans aren’t really contracting with hospitals in those areas.  Mostly Medi-Cal patients, Medicare patients, large amounts of charity patients.  On those situations, if an insured patient is coming through the ED, the result of a traffic accident or something like that, it is in a community-based care.


Another example is health plans make strategic decisions about who they contract with.  We are seeing increasing movements to tiered networks, narrow networks, limited networks, and so there is a strategic analysis that goes into what they want their network to look like—which hospitals will be in their network—and sometimes they even contract for specific services at a hospital but not with the entire hospital.  And so, in many situations, that will create a noncontracted problem.


Another major reason why hospitals don’t have contracts is because an existing contract that has been in place for many years, by its terms terminates, and the parties enter a new negotiation, and the new contract hasn’t been completed and finalized when the old contract terms.  And so, there is a window of time where there are now patients that are noncontracted.


An additional reason is that oftentimes the parties are unable to achieve the rate that they were interested in.  From the hospital perspective, they were not able to negotiate a rate sufficient for them to continue operations and provide services.  So in that case, it’s a noncontracted situation.


There was testimony earlier on about the various dynamics that occurs in contract negotiations and about who has market power.  It’s an interesting concept to analyze because it’s always changing.  In 1990, there were 23 major health plans.  Today there are five.  That certainly impacts the ability to negotiate a rate.  There are over 400 hospitals and over a dozen systems.  Of course, there are regional differences, and those regional differences change over time as parties adjust to it.

Economic cycles also make a difference in who has a competitive advantage.  Standard & Poor’s just came out with an analysis of hospitals and rated hospital outlook generally as “negative.”  Stability is Vulnerable is the title.


So if there isn’t a contract, how do hospitals and health plans determine what is the appropriate payment?  The terms of art, the legal terms, are either “quantum meruit” or “reasonable and customary.”  In laymen’s terms, “What is fair.”  And it’s a basic legal standard that applies to anybody who provides services.  If one party provides services, the other party gets the benefit of services, they should be paid a fair amount, and that’s reasonable and customary.  The AB 1455 regulations were an attempt to put some parameters around it.  And I would agree with the other folks who have testified, but those factors, by and large, work.  Most of the time we can figure out what reasonable and customary is.  The standard is flexible enough to allow all the evidence to be considered:  to consider the unique nature of the various physician specialties that may be involved and the various types of hospitals and what their diverse cost structures are.


What happens in those circumstances where the parties can’t come to an agreement on what reasonable and customary is?  Well, by and large, the first level of resolution is discussions and negotiations between the parties.  In many cases, these are sophisticated parties that are used to figuring this out, and after some conversations and negotiations, the health plan and the hospital arrive at what a reasonable rate would be.  

Other mechanisms are the plan’s internal dispute resolution process.  In many cases, the disputes are rolled over into the contract negotiation that may be occurring.  So while we’re negotiating the new contract—or when we have the new contract negotiation, we’re going to roll into, now, all those pended disputes we’ve had while we were noncontracted.  And so, it gets resolved at that point.


Then there’s legal process, of course:  arbitration and eventually the courts. 
So the system appears to be working in most cases.  There is a process in place for when there are factual disputes, to consider all of the evidence, and there are remedies available.


I’m aware that various solutions have been suggested.  One of them has been trying to set a more specific benchmark for what reasonable and customary is.  And I would just advise the committee, as you look at those, to consider the fact that anytime you start defining what a payment would be, that it becomes rate-setting.  And the challenge with that is a rate for one group of physicians or hospitals may be adequate but it may be inadequate for somebody else.


There has also been some suggestion about mandatory arbitration systems.  We’ve really taken a hard look at that.  We’ve been working with several stakeholders on that, and I think it is an option that really is more valuable for physicians because the point of a fast dispute resolution process—and if you make it mandatory—is to go through a lot of claims quickly without having to grind through a lot of evidence and come up with a determination.  That works better for claims that aren’t high-dollar claims or exceedingly complex and have a lot of different issues in it.  It’s just what’s the right payment.  Hospital claims tend to be different because they have a lot of other issues than just what is the payment.  Oftentimes, if it’s a very high dollar amount, no party wants to take the risk of kind of a fast, shortcut mediation process.  That just adds delay and actual costs.

For some level of cases, it would be appropriate, but that’s why we think a voluntary system is really the best at bringing parties to the table and resolving things.


So thank you very much for the time.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  I have a couple of questions, maybe some comments as well.  Let me just kind of talk a little bit about your opening remarks with regard to contracting.  I understand the dynamics about rural areas, you know, the patient population, the competition amongst various areas, and I would think in a perfect world we want to make sure that every hospital as a contract to deal with all patients to avoid any type of out-of-network or any resolution conflicts.


But of your hospitals, do you have any indication of the percentage of them that don’t have the majority of their hospitals have contracts?  Is there a percentage of your hospitals that have no contracts at all or are trying to decrease the number of contracts they have as a standard of business?


MR. GRELLMAN:  I don’t have information about that.  I do believe that most hospitals have contracts.  The larger hospitals, the larger systems, try to have contracts with all the major plans because it’s incredibly disruptive to have a large portion of the population be noncontracted.  It just gums up the entire system.  So they really do try hard to have contracts.  I think it happens more with smaller hospitals or where there are hospitals in a concentrated area, and then the health plan will make a strategic decision to try to move all their patients to the hospital they’re contracting with.  And so, the hospitals that are nearby wouldn’t have a contract.


You know, we’re seeing it a lot with tiered networks and narrow networks too.  It’s a strategic decision that’s made.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  Any questions?


ASSEMBLYMEMBER ENG:  Just a real quick question.  I think it’s our goal—everyone’s goal—to try to have predictability in terms of costs and to have something that’s a little bit more evidence-based.  Are there any studies which compare, say, the assessment of the cost at the reasonable and customary negotiation or even mediation versus what happens when you go to court and you sue in quantum meruit?  What’s the comparison?  I mean, if you are going to be assessed more if you go to court, then the incentive will be to go to court rather than to try to settle it through either mediation or through pre-mediation.  If, on the other hand, it’s more predictable prior to going to court, then you would want to avoid going to court.  

What’s your thought on that?  Are there any studies you can point us to?


MR. GRELLMANN:  I don’t have any studies.  Since CHA as a trade association isn’t party to the litigation, I wouldn’t be able to opine on which way the trends go.


But I think the point I can make is no party wants to go to court because it’s expensive, and that really is the last resort.  These matters are really resolved at the negotiation level.  If it does rise to the litigation, there are fundamental differences and opinion among the parties about what the facts are and what the evidence is.  I think that’s appropriate.  I think that’s the place to sort it out, and it’s not the majority of what happens.  By and large, most hospitals and health plans have contracts, and by and large, when they don’t they’re able to work out most of the problems.


So there is a process in place for finding out what the facts are, and there are remedies in place in circumstances where there’s a problem.


ASSEMBLYMEMBMER ENG:  Okay.  It’s a shame there isn’t a study, either nationally or locally, that would compare those costs.  But if you do find one, I really would like to know.


MR. GRELLMANN:  Okay.  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  We may have some questions to follow up at a later date.  If you don’t mind, we’ll just follow up with you.


MR. GRELLMANN:  Thank you.  Be happy to help.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.


Okay, we have the next individual—Michael Sarrao, Esq., Vice President and General Counsel, Prime Healthcare Management.


Good morning, sir.  I mean good afternoon; it’s 12:30.  Welcome.


MR. MICHAEL SARRAO:  Good afternoon, Senator.


Like you said, my name is Michael Sarrao.  I’m the vice president and general counsel for Prime Healthcare Services, then all of its subsidiaries and affiliates.


By way of background, Prime Healthcare was formed in late 2000 to acquire Desert Valley Hospital, as it was near bankruptcy and on the verge of closure.  Desert Valley is located in Victorville.  
After Prime Healthcare turned Desert Valley back into the strong community hospital it had been, it looked to acquire other hospitals.  In 2004, acquired Chino Valley Medical Center in Chino, California out of bankruptcy.  Interestingly, it was somewhat of a bidding war between Prime and Kaiser for that hospital.  Things happened in bankruptcy, and Prime acquired the hospital.  In 2006, Prime acquired what was then known as Sherman Oaks Hospital and Health Center, over here in Sherman Oaks, that for a long time had the Grossman Burn Center.  As a result of our acquisition, the state saved at least $17 million because the state had guaranteed bonds by the nonprofit owner of Sherman Oaks Hospital at that time, but us buying it, those bonds were paid off, and the state saved $17 million.

Since 2006, we’ve acquired a number of other hospitals.  Most recently we acquired a hospital on Wednesday of this week in Philadelphia, called Roxborough Memorial Hospital, and this past December, Harlingen Medical Center in Harlingen, Texas.  So we are moving outside of California as well, as we continue to look at hospitals in California.


Most, if not all, of the hospitals we acquire have been in some sort of distress.  For example, in March of 2007, we acquired Paradise Valley Hospital in National City.  That was after the Adventist Health Board of Directors had voted to shut the hospital down due to losses if a sale couldn’t occur.  We also acquired Shasta Regional Medical Center in the fall of 2008 on about ten days’ notice, and it was on the verge of closure because its then-owner had filed bankruptcy.


Today, Prime Healthcare Services, the for-profit division, has 11 acute care hospitals with more than 2,100 licensed beds in California, and the Prime Healthcare Services Foundation, which is a 501(c)(3) public charity, owns three hospitals in southern California.  It’s important to note for Prime Healthcare Services Foundation it didn’t pay anything for those hospitals.  Those hospitals were donated by Prime Healthcare Services, and they were donated debt-free.  So unlike many nonprofit hospitals that take on a great deal of debt burden, these hospitals are debt free and won’t suffer the same fate.

Encino Hospital Medical Center was donated at the end of 2009; Montclair Hospital Medical Center, end of 2010; and most recently Sherman Oaks Hospital, which had been acquired in 2006 as a nonprofit to for-profit, was converted back to a nonprofit hospital.


Our 14 hospitals in California employ close to 10,000 people and have more than 3,500 independent physicians on their medical staffs.  We do not employ the physicians.  In California, hospitals do not employ physicians.  We do not employ any of the physicians.


Above all else, we’re dedicated to quality care.  We’ve been recognized as a leader in quality care.  This past January we were recognized as a Top 15 Health System in the United States by Thomson Reuters based on quality measures.  It’s important to note you can’t pay for that study; you can’t ask to participate.  Thomson Reuters produces that study.  In 2009, we were recognized as a Top 10 Health System by Thomson Reuters.  We didn’t go down, so to speak, from Top 10 to Top 15, but Thomson Reuters changed their study, so now there’s 15 systems—5 large, 5 medium, and 5 small.  We were in the top 5 of the medium systems.


Desert Valley Hospital, which is Prime Healthcare’s first hospital, has been recognized as a Top 100 hospital five different times.  West Anaheim Medical Center has been recognized as a Top 100 hospital two different times since Prime acquired it in 2006.  And Montclair Hospital was recognized as a Top 100 hospital in 2009.


This past fall Joint Commission, which is the largest Medicare accreditation organization, came out with a study of Top Performers on Key Quality Measures.  Nine of Prime’s 11 hospitals that are accredited by Joint Commission in California were recognized as top performers, and that puts us in the top 14 percent.  My recollection, there was about 36 hospitals in California that received that award; 18 in southern California.

I want to clear up a few misconceptions that I think everyone has out there; a popular belief.  The perception is that Prime Healthcare doesn’t contract with health plans.  That’s not correct.  We contract with health plans.  At last count, we had more than 165 active contracts with health plans.  Probably this week, or Monday or Tuesday, we’ll go sign a contract with one of the larger IPAs in southern California for several of our hospitals.  Five of our hospitals maintain contracts with CMAC, which is the Medi-Cal selective provider contracting system, and provide a number of beneficiaries … care to beneficiaries.


Garden Grove Hospital and San Dimas Community Hospital—two hospitals we acquired from Tenet in 2008—maintain contracts with essentially all the major health plans in California.  Those contracts were in place when we acquired them.  We’ve maintained essentially all of those contracts.


I also think it’s important that when we’re talking about hospital reimbursement, we need to look at payer mix.  Our payer mix is 85 percent represents Medicare, Medi-Cal, and indigent or self-pay (those without insurance) that arrive in the ER for care.  A speaker earlier talked about the need for preventive care and not have, necessarily, that preventive care in the ER.  We agree with that, and we’ve developed nonprofit clinics to try to address that to provide that preventive care.  Only about 15 percent of the patient volumes at our hospitals represent HMO and PPO patients.  So in other words, for 85 percent of our patients, the compensation is fixed either by Medicare or Medi-Cal or we don’t get any compensation at all.


We have one of the most robust charity care programs around.  In 2010-2011, combined, we provided more than $235 million in charity care.  We believe that puts us at par, or better, than any other nonprofit or for-profit systems in California based on a per-patient day or per-bed basis.  Our charity care program, if they qualify for charity care, it’s written off.  We don’t charge them anything if they qualify for charity care.  We’ve set the level to allow them to qualify higher than what the state requires because we think that’s important.

Like I said, we contract and we are willing to contract if contracts are fair and reasonable, but one thing everyone needs to realize is when you contract, two parties have to want to contract.  So the health plan has to want to contract with the hospital and the hospital has to want to contract with the health plan.  And not all health plans want to contract with every hospital.


The second thing is there has to be some exchange of consideration.  What the health plan gets is discounted rates; a lot of times substantially discounted rates.  There has to be something that comes back to the hospital, and typically it’s been there’s some sense of you’re going to get some patient volume by being contracted.  If every hospital is contracted, there’s no benefit necessarily to being contracted.  So we have to look at that.


And just being noncontracted doesn’t mean you get paid your bill charges.  Like I said, for Medicare, Medi-Cal, and self-pay, we don’t get … self-pay we don’t get paid anything.  Medicare and Medi-Cal is substantially less than our bill charges.  And for those where we don’t have contracts with commercial enrollees, we bill charges the same charges we bill everybody.  Health plans pay what they believe is reasonable and customary.  If we agree with them, we take it; if we don’t, we fight with that health plan about what’s reasonable and customary.


The problem we have with reasonable and customary is DMHC (Department of Managed Health Care) is largely ineffective.  They’ve developed this independent dispute resolution process, but it’s voluntary.  We offered to go to IDRP with health plans; the health plans don’t want to go to it.  So there’s no real end-game there.  The Gould criteria, I think everyone would agree, it provides some criteria, but for every criteria, you can have arguments back and forth.  DMHC, when you raise issues with DMHC, they look at practices and patterns rather than specific claims, and in our view, the health plans are just simply willing to pay penalties.  DMHC just recently took action against Blue Cross where Blue Cross was supposed to implement a corrective action plan, and as I read the action taken by DMHC, Blue Cross pretty much decided, Hey, we’d rather pay the penalties than deal with it.  So there’s something wrong with that system.

And the other problem with the managed care system is we’re adding more and more layers to managed care.  You have the health plan.  You have groups like Heritage, which are limited Knox-Keene licenses, contracting with the health plans, then contracting with RBOs (risk-bearing organizations), hospitals, and medical groups.  Every layer wants part of that premium dollar, so there’s less and less premium dollar available to pay for the actual providers of care.  It’s almost an attitude of delay and deny care.  With respect to Heritage, I would estimate that 95 percent of the time we have to submit multiple appeals just to get a claim paid.  Their first blush is, Deny the claim; delay the payment.  We have to submit appeals.  So that’s an ongoing problem.


And it’s not just the hospitals that face that; it’s those emergency providers—the doctors that provide call coverage, that important call coverage.  So when someone needs to see an orthopedic surgeon in the ER, there’s an orthopedic surgeon available.  But what’s happening is they’re getting paid less and less because there’s more uninsured.  Medi-Cal reimbursement is going down, and if they have to keep fighting with the health plans to get paid, they’re less and less willing to take call, or they want these large stipends to take call because they don’t want to work for free.  The problem is hospitals can’t continue to pay larger and larger stipends and still stay afloat.

We heard a lot about transfers of patients and AB 1203, which is actually Health and Safety Code 1262.8.  I would venture to guess that most health plans—Kaiser excluded because Kaiser’s unique; Kaiser actually sponsored the original version of it—are ill-equipped to handle it.  They can’t transfer patients in a timely fashion.  They don’t have the access to medical records that Kaiser does.  We developed transfer protocols.  We’ve shared those transfer protocols with the California Department of Public Health, the Department of Managed Health Care.  We’ve shared them with Kaiser.  Department of Public Health—no objection.  Department of Managed Health Care—no objection.  The objection we got from Kaiser is we believe that a patient should … if they’re going to transfer a patient, they should try to transfer the patient within two hours.  Two hours should be the goal.  There’s numerous studies that show less time the patient stays in the ER the better.  You shouldn’t hoard patients in the ER.  And Kaiser’s own executives admitted that, but they have an issue with the two-hour rule.


And although EMTALA provides a definition of “stabilization,” it’s kind of an amorphous general definition.  We think there’s a better definition of stabilization.  Medi-Cal has developed what we call the Chapter 5.4 guidelines:  Stable for Transport Guidelines for Medi-Cal beneficiaries that provide guidance.  The doctors who are independent use those guidelines to help them define the EMTALA standard.  So there’s not something that’s made up; it’s Medi-Cal came up with these standards.


And all this 1262.8 stabilization, it is the independent judgment of the treating physician.  That is clear.  It’s clear from state law, it’s clear from Medicare; it’s the independent judgment of the treating physician.  I heard suggestions that administrators are telling physicians to write “unstable.”  I’m not aware of that happening.  I’m not aware of any physician that would write a patient as unstable because an administrator told them to.  I’ve met hundreds of ER doctors that work in hospitals across the state, including Prime hospitals.  They’re good doctors and they exercise their independent judgment.  I find it hard to believe that a physician would put his livelihood, his license, his integrity at stake when a patient really wasn’t unstable.


As everybody knows, Prime’s involved in litigation with Kaiser.  We’re also involved in litigation with Heritage, so I’m hesitant to get into too many details of that because I think the proper forum for that, and will be resolved, is courts.  They’re __________, they will go to court.  We believe the facts are much different than what Kaiser and Heritage believe, but ultimately, a judge or a jury is going to decide that, and that’s where that forum should be decided.


Ms. Taylor-Davey—I heard her speak.  I read the article, was it? in the California Watch a couple of years ago.  West Anaheim Medical Center has reviewed those records; has a different view of what happened and what communications took place between physicians to physicians.  I’m hesitant to share that.  If Ms. Davey would like to sign an authorization, we’d be happy to share that information with you to show the complete medical work and what happened from the hospital’s perspective.

We’re also going to hear, I’m sure—I know, because I saw Mr. Weisberg here—we’re going to hear from SEIU, and I believe we’re going to hear from UNAC.  SEIU—Prime is in a dispute with SEIU.  There’s no debate.  Four of the hospitals have SEIU contracts.  One, the SEIU members essentially threw SEIU out.  SEIU challenged that and it was upheld.  They left.  They sued us and we won.  We have disputes with SEIU.  We don’t dispute that.  We have federal litigation in San Diego.  But you have to keep that in mind.  All SEIU is looking at is data.  To the contrary, when these allegations came out, California Department of Public Health came out and investigated these sepsis allegations.  They initially issued findings.  We went back and forth with them.  They issued new 2567s, not citing deficiencies as to coding or diagnosis.  Malnutrition, same thing.


In addition, Joint Commission came out to nine or ten of the hospitals and not looked at the data but reviewed the records and said, No, the diagnosis of sepsis was correct.  The elements were there by the treating physician.  HFAP, which is the AOA, the DO program for accreditation, came out, did the same thing at the hospitals they accredited; said, No issues.  So other people have done that.  And beyond that, Medicare is set up to do that.  We have ______ audits now.  Medicare looks at claims.  It’s done; we go through it.  We’re happy to have any agency come in and look at records and review the records.  We’re confident in what our records show.  We’re confident that our coding is appropriate.

And I do want to talk about what’s disturbing and stuff a little bit with respect to Kaiser.  I do think it’s also disturbing when Kaiser people call patients in the hospital or call family members in the hospital and threaten and harass them with large bills that aren’t going to happen and those people suffer consequences because of that.  That’s also disturbing that that would happen.  Again, Kaiser has their perspective, we have our perspective, and that’s certainly going to be resolved in litigation.


I’m happy to take questions.  I’m sure you have questions for me.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Yes, I do.  Thank you very much.


Your opening remarks kind of gave a historical perspective of Prime and the hospitals they purchased.  And correct me if I’m wrong, but it sounds like you purchased a lot of failing hospitals.  Is that correct?


MR. SARRAO:  That is correct.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  So the business model, was the business model to purchase failing hospitals, or is your business model just to purchase hospitals in general?  Because most of all, the hospitals you purchased are failing.  So is that the business model?


MR. SARRAO:  The business model is to acquire hospitals, and because if a hospital is successful, it’s typically not for sale.  So those hospitals that are for sale typically tend to be distressed hospitals.  But part of the model is to acquire distressed hospitals because we think we have the right formula to turn those distressed hospitals around and make them survive in the community.  Centinela Hospital in Inglewood—when we acquired it, it was failing.  We’ve improved Centinela Hospital.  We’re in the process of a $30 million expansion at Centinela to seismically retrofit it, increase the emergency department, increase the laboratory space.  The ER visits have gone up.  The number of people that are seen, especially uninsured, have gone up at Centinela.  So part of it is we can acquire a distressed hospital, knowing how to operate a hospital; infuse the capital that’s necessary.  Many of these hospitals haven’t had new equipment for ten years, so they’re out of date.  They need new equipment.  We’ve bought hospitals where they can’t afford to keep lights on; simple things like that that we can do to make a difference.

SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  So my understanding is by purchasing these hospitals that are distressed, you’re claiming that that’s not your business model but you have a tendency to do that.  So how is it that you can turn those hospitals around to be profitable based on what you’re telling me right now:  that you have extra capital, you have the ability to do it.  You must have this incredible business plan.  But explain to me how that it is.  And then I’ve got a series of questions that I want to follow up with you on that.


MR. SARRAO:  Sure.  The first thing would be smart infusion of capital and capital that comes at a cheaper cost.  We’ve acquired hospitals that are paying 18, 20 percent on their money to borrow money.  You can’t pay 20 percent to borrow money and turn a profit and be successful.  We’re able to get capital at a cheaper rate.


The second thing is you need to operate hospitals efficiently, and a big part of that operating efficiently is state-of-the-art equipment.  We’re able to install state-of-the-art equipment that makes the hospital become more efficient and patients get seen quicker; so your left-without-being-seen decreases, the quality of care goes up.


Third, we focus on physician-driven management and clinical protocols where the physicians really guide the practice of the hospital and do what’s best for the patient.


Fourth is length of stay.  Length of stay, if it’s not managed properly, patients can stay too long in the hospital.  We try to be at what’s called the “geometric length of stay” by what’s Medicare for patients.  So that means you have the doctor come and see the patient at eight in the morning, so if they need to be discharged, they can be discharged in the morning.  Where before, when we’ve acquired hospitals, physicians would come in at eight o’clock at night to see the patient, write a discharge order.  But in most occasions you can’t discharge that patient at eight or nine o’clock at night; it’s just not good for the patient.  So then you wait another day to discharge the patient and you incur that much more cost.  So if we can manage the length of stay appropriately, which is better for the patient, it’s better for us as well.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Let me just follow up on a couple of the comments that disturbed me with regard to Kaiser with their EPRP.  Of course, the compelling story by Ms. Taylor-Davey.  I want to get your input especially with regard to what the Kaiser physician said—the refusal for your providers to even take the call; tell them that they can’t talk to them; and the standard of care and with regard to allow them to be able to interact.  Do you have any comment to that, and if so, why are your providers or your physicians not communicating with other provider networks or other groups?


MR. SARRAO:  Well, they’re independent physicians, so the best person to ask that question is physicians.  I’m not aware of anybody being told they can’t talk to Kaiser …


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Well, but then again, you know, the standard of care and the way most physicians are trained is that there needs to be this congeniality between professionals to be able to do that, and it just sounds like that’s not occurring, and that has to come from some direction from somewhere.  Do you have any answer to that at all?


MR. SARRAO:  But isn’t the standard of care not to use your EPRP to transfer every patient regarding stability?  Isn’t the standard of care, when you have a patient that gets burned over the majority of her body, saying they were stable for transfer day one?  That’s the standard of care.  I could get into responses.  I’m in litigation with Kaiser.  Kaiser wants to get into it, we can get into it.  We’ll march all the doctors up.  Our doctors will tell what they view it as.  Their doctors will tell what they view it as.  There are divergent opinions.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Let me ask you some other questions with regard to the sepsis issue as well as the malnutrition.  For example, how do you explain your system’s very high rates of rare illness diagnosis, especially with Medicare payments?  For example, why does Shasta Regional Medical Center have a malnutrition rate of around 20 percent but no other hospital in California has it above 2 percent?


MR. SARRAO:  That’s just wrong.  Kaiser Woodland Hills has a higher malnutrition rate than Shasta Regional Medical Center, according to the …

SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Can you provide me that information?


MR. SARRAO:  2009 OSHPD data, absolutely.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Make sure you get it to our office.  I’d appreciate it.


MR. SARRAO:  Absolutely.  But I can also explain that.  You have to understand …


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Well, I’m satisfied if you can just grab me the information.


MR. SARRAO:  Well, I’d like to respond if you want me to.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Sure, go for it.  I’d still appreciate the information.


MR. SARRAO:  Absolutely.  Not a problem at all.


You have to remember is Mr. Douglas talked about coding improvement and documentation improvement.  We think we’re ahead of the curve in documentation improvement.  And because at some hospitals, including Shasta, we don’t contract with a lot of the health plans, the patients that end up in our ER are acutely ill, and that acute illness also causes that malnutrition.  So you have to realize that patients that end up at our hospital are more acutely ill because a lot of times they’re in nursing homes, skilled nursing facilities.  They don’t have a Medicare managed care program, like they’re not enrolled in a Kaiser senior HMO where they’re seeing their doctors, they’re getting all the preventive care they should; so by the time they arrive at the ER they’re acutely ill, and those acute illnesses that brought them to the ER also affects their malnutrition status.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  You had mentioned the DMHC volunteer independent review system.  Let me ask you:  Should the Legislature establish a mandatory independent provider dispute resolution system to resolve such payment amount disputes?


MR. SARRAO:  I don’t think so.  I think what we have in place today, the courts and arbitration between the parties, works sufficiently well enough, and I think we’d create more of a burden and a bureaucracy on DMHC and the state to try to resolve that.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  What is your standard for a patient being eligible for transfer?


MR. SARRAO:  What the independent physician determines whether the patient is stable for transfer.  I know that independent physicians have came up and discovered these Chapter 5.4 Stable for Transfer Guidelines that were developed by Medi-Cal.  Not something we developed.  Something that the ER physicians believe is appropriate, and it was developed by Medi-Cal.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Did you have any questions, Assemblymember?  Go ahead.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you.  Thank you for being here today and for sharing some of this history of your organization and the perspective of Prime on some of these very serious issues.


I’ve got a couple of questions.  One:  How do you reconcile a statewide average of 36 percent of emergency room admissions ending up into hospital admissions versus a 64 percent rate at Prime hospitals?


 MR. SARRAO:  I don’t know if I agree with that study.  I haven’t seen Heritage’s study.  It’s a study that Heritage performed.  I’d have to look at Heritage’s study.  I have seen the admission rates for OSHPD utilization data, and I think our admission rates are on par with other hospitals.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Would you provide that information to us?


MR. SARRAO:  The utilization—absolutely.  It’s OSHPD available, and I absolutely can provide that.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  And then, sir, I’m also troubled by the testimony from the Kaiser physician.  You’re focusing on the standard of care and the independent judgment of the treating physician.  I fully appreciate that.  But how do you justify a treating physician refusing an overture from a patient’s physician offering to provide background information about that patient, medication information about that patient?  How does a Prime doctor adequately treat a patient when he or she refuses to accept a phone call from that patient’s physician?


MR. SARRAO:  Well, first, I don’t accept the concept or the philosophy that Kaiser’s doing this and that those doctors are refusing to take those calls.  I disagree with that.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  And is it your—and you’re not testifying today—but is it your position that there is no policy at Prime where a patient’s physician contacts Prime and is told that there is a policy not to allow direct contact between a treating physician at Prime and that patient’s physician from another plan?


MR. SARRAO:  I’m not aware of any policy, but I will say, we don’t tolerate Kaiser calling and harassing patients and patients’ families.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Right.  You made that point.  I’m not talking about a doctor’s contact with a patient.  I’m talking about a doctor seeking to talk to a Prime physician.  Is it your position that Prime does not have a policy to refuse that direct connection between the patient’s physician and a Prime treating physician?


MR. SARRAO:  I’m not aware of any, but you’re presuming that that phone call from Kaiser’s doctor, their EPRP, is this good, noble goal of exchanging information.  What I understand is that’s not the case.  The case is the majority of the time—because Kaiser’s model is predicated on moving their patients back to Kaiser hospitals.  I understand that.  Their goal on a majority of those calls, as I understand it, is to repatriate that patient and get that patient back and influence the treating physician’s judgment so they can transfer the patient.  Rather than that …


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Influence or perhaps inform.  Would you agree in theory that it would help a treating physician to learn as much as possible about the patient that they don’t have a history with who’s come into your emergency room?


MR. SARRAO:  I don’t know and I don’t know what that treating physician would want to know for every patient and what information …


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Well, as matter of common sense, do you think they would like to know if they have an allergy to a particular anesthesia?


MR. SARRAO:  The best person to answer that question’s the treating physician.  I’m not the treating physician.  I’m not a physician.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  But it’s your position today that there’s no policy at Prime to refuse a patient’s physician contact with one of your emergency room physicians.


MR. SARRAO:  Well, again, it depends on why that patient’s physician is contacting the ER physician.  You also have to remember that it’s not Kaiser’s … it’s not the patient’s primary care physician that’s calling the physician.  It’s an EPRP doctor who probably has never seen the patient.  So it’s not as if I’m a patient at Kaiser and I go to Dr. Smith and Dr. Smith is calling the ER doctor and saying, I’ve been treating this patient for ten years; here’s what they have …

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  I understand that qualification.  Nonetheless, whoever is calling from Kaiser, using that as the example, presumably has at their fingertips more information about the patient than the ER doctor might have at Prime.


MR. SARRAO:  Perhaps, but I can’t agree with that presumption.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  But it is your position that Prime has no policy to deny a physician access to one of your treating physicians.


MR. SARRAO:  Physicians are independent physicians.  They can collect whatever information they want to collect to treat a patient.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  But do your physicians then have a policy of informing your staff to inform a calling physician not to pass their call through to them?


MR. SARRAO:  I don’t know what the physician’s policy is.  They’re independent physicians.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  And if you heard tape recordings of phone calls where a Prime employee—not a physician—said, “It is our policy not to connect your call to the treating physician,” would that surprise you?


MR. SARRAO:  I’d have to listen to the tape recordings.  I suspect Kaiser tape records all their calls.  I’d have to see that.  And because an employee does that doesn’t mean it’s the policy.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  But you’re not aware of that policy.


MR. SARRAO:  I’m not aware of that policy.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you. 


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Appreciate your time and consideration.  Thank you.


MR. SARRAO:  Thank you.  Just so I’m clear—utilization data on transfer rates?

ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Yes.


MR. SARRAO:  And then, Senator Hernandez, it was the malnutrition numbers that I referenced.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Correct.  Thank you.


ASSEMBLYMEMBER MONNING:  Thank you.


MR. SARRAO:  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay, we have Reece Ivan Fawley, Executive Director of Health Plan Strategy and Transplantation, UCSF Medical Center and Benioff Children’s Hospital.


MR. REECE IVAN FAWLEY:  Good morning, Mr. Chair.  First, I have to say it’s a privilege to participate in this educational forum.  I also have to say it’s a little bit ironic because I’m here, really, to impress upon everyone how important it is for the UC system to make sure that we continue to have access under all contracts, with all plans, to all of our facilities.


The five academic medical centers of the University of California comprise the nation’s largest health sciences training program with 14,000 students and 16 professional schools.  UC Health is also the fourth largest provider of care in California.  The five campuses consist of 10 hospitals, 5,000 faculty physicians, and 32,000 staff.  And as an essential safety net provider throughout the state, more than 60 percent of the care that is provided is provided to Medicare, Medi‑Cal, and the underinsured.  That becomes important later in the conversation.


In an effort to promote collaboration and innovation across the system, I’d like to point out that University of California created the UC Center for Health Quality Innovation in 2010.  By leveraging talent and creativity through systemwide collaboration, the center expects to achieve greater advancements in health outcomes and cost improvement and patient care than could otherwise be provided by individual facilities.  The center’s currently funding grants that include initiatives to prevent blood clots, reduce preventable readmissions, decrease patient falls, and exposure to CT radiation.


I’ll try and pick up the pace here.  It seems like we’re moving along.


Consistent with the UC commitment to collaboration, UC Health engages with major statewide health payers, both government and commercial, on a systemwide basis.  This includes participation in California’s very innovative five-year Section 1115 Medicaid waiver, which includes a Delivery System Reform Incentive Program which, in brief, provides a federal pay-for-performance incentive to improve patient care and specifically to expand initiatives across the system for public hospitals.  

Systemwide engagement with major commercial plans helps to ensure that Californians have access to the most advanced care available at all of the five UC medical campuses and, I would argue, on an in-network basis with minimal out-of-pocket cost.  Whether the patients are seeking comprehensive local services or lifesaving tertiary and quaternary care, we feel it’s important that they have access.


I’ll be brief, but I’d like to end by saying that I think the single biggest problem with the—and it was touched upon earlier with Dr. Wu’s comments—with the current delivery system and the financing of that system is the enormous disparity and the amount of Medi-Cal, Medicare, and underinsured patients served by different providers.  As a result of the public policy that we are currently under, it really forces those who choose to serve these vulnerable populations to cover much of the cost.  Fortunately, most of the health plans—and I’m at UC San Francisco Medical Center—that we negotiate with understand UC’s commitment to these vulnerable populations and the impact that that actually has on the cost of the commercial rate structure.


So with that, I would take any questions you might have.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.  I don’t have any questions at this time.  But appreciate your time.


MR. FAWLEY:  Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Okay, we’re going to move on to item number five, “Health System Stakeholders.”  We have two individuals presenting.  We have Adam Weisberg, Research Coordinator, Service Employees International Union.  We have Lisa Demidovich, Esq., United Nurses Associations of California/Union of Health Care Professionals.  


And the first presenter—I’m assuming is ready?  Ready?


MR. ADAM WEISBERG:  Yes.  Thank you so much for hosting this and for having us, and everyone for being here.  Hopefully, we’ll get the PowerPoint up, which should be in a folder somewhere.


[Setting up PowerPoint.]


I want to talk a lot about Prime Healthcare; in particular, consider a couple of issues around moving to the DRG system and thinking about what Prime Healthcare’s model means for moving to a DRG system in Medi-Cal and just urging a little bit of caution.  


We are absolutely in a labor dispute with Prime Healthcare.  As many of you probably have experienced in your lifetime, when you have an incredibly bad boss who treats you without dignity or respect, a lot of times they treat other people without dignity or respect as well.  


I’m a nerd.  I’m going to show you a lot of data.  I know Mr. Sarrao, from Prime, said that we would just talk about data.  I think that’s probably a good thing.  It takes the bias out—usually.


I’m not going to go too much into detail.  Dr. Wu talked at the beginning of this about the DRG systems and how they work.  There was a little bit of discussion about the possibility of upcoding.  I want to talk about that a little bit more.  The APR-DRG system, like the MS-DRG system, is subject to upcoding.  So, for example, each of the DRGs in the Medicare system, the MS-DRG system—I’m sorry to be so nerdy at this point in the afternoon—have typically three levels, like small, medium, and large, and the difference in payment can be a factor of two or three.  So you can get maybe $5,000 for the easy version and 10[000], $12,000 for the hardest version.

The APR-DRG system has even another level, so it has minor, moderate, major, and extreme.  This can actually make it even more subject to upcoding.  So the way that you get into higher levels is by saying that the patient’s sicker.  Prime has really … they say that … I believe Mr. Sarrao said, “We think we’re ahead of the curve” on coding and documentation.  If they’re ahead of the curve, then you’ve got to look at where the curve is going to figure out how much the costs are going to end up at across the system, if everybody has to follow their lead in order to get their fair share of health care dollars.


So here what you’re looking at is every health system in the country that had at least 10,000 general acute care claims—Medicare claims.  These are patients 65 or older.  Each dot is a health system with at least 10,000 hospital bills.  We’ve taken out surgeries, and we’ve taken out specialty care, like cancer care, HIV care.  You take out surgeries because folks who do, like, transplants and so forth, they’re going to have a much higher case mix index.  We want to compare hospitals apples to apples.  This includes probably 85 percent of Prime Healthcare’s care, for example.


So what you’re looking at here is just a standardized … the dollar figure is really just the DRG case mix, multiplied by just the standard dollar figure nationally.  Of course, in California that dollar figure’s higher because we’ve got a higher labor index under Medicare than some of the other states.  So we’ve taken out any bias from that.

What we’ve done here is you’re looking at the 94 health systems in the United States of America that had at least 10,000 qualifying claims.  You’ve got the Mayo Clinic and the Cleveland Clinic and Cedars are on here.  Everybody that you can think of that’s big is on here.  You’ve got them ranked in order by how severe they’re saying their average patient is for the purposes of their DRG payment for Medicare.  And you can see that Prime, at that red dot, is four standard deviations above the median—rather, the mean.  The mean is like at 6,200 box, and Prime’s almost a thousand dollars higher for every single case, for over 10,000 cases.  The second highest health system in the United States of America was just over two standard deviations.  If they’re “ahead of the curve,” watch out for where this curve is going.


When you look at the rates of serious conditions that they are billing to Medicare, this is the top 10 or12 hospitals in the United States of America for the rate of septicemia.  They’re off the charts.  It is just data.  So again, for hospital stays, you’ve got it right.  The yellow ones are Prime, is the top 10 or 12 in the country.  I don’t even know if I need to explain it too much more, but I do want to make one particular comment here.


Mr. Sarrao talked about the quality of care at Prime hospitals, and the quality of care as measured by, say, Thomson Reuters is measured, using APR-DRGs similar to MS-DRGs.  They take into account all of the diseases that the hospital says that the person has.  So if you have a person with septicemia and they have a very good outcome, the quality of the hospital looks excellent.  And here you’ve got one, two, three, four, five, six, seven of the top 12 hospitals in the United States of America for how many cases have septicemia as a percentage of all of their general acute care stays—are all operated by this one California health system.


Now, in 2010, looking at the OSHPD data in California—and I want to go ahead and I happen to have, being kind of geeky, the numbers for Woodland Hills and all that in my head that I can go ahead and knock out for you.  So what you’re looking at here are severe malnutrition cases in the state of California at hospitals, and here these are secondary diagnoses.  The denominator actually includes all cases regardless of whether they’re surgical or medical or anything else, as long as they’re listed as Medicare, 65 and up, so that we get a pretty good apples-to-apples mix as good as we can here.  


So again, here, the yellow ones are Prime Healthcare.  These are severe malnutrition.  There’s only three ICD-9 diagnosis codes that qualify as major complications or comorbidities for purposes of Medicare MS-DRG payment.  Those are 261, 262.  They are kwashiorkor disease, nutritional marasmus, and other severe malnutrition.  Now, Huntington Beach, as I recall, had a very high rate of extremely mild malnutrition and had 7 cases, or something like that—less than 10 cases in a year—of severe malnutrition.  Shasta Regional Medical Center had 1,284 cases of severe malnutrition in 2010 alone.  Over 7[00] or 800 of those were kwashiorkor disease.  So actually, I’ve got to respectfully correct one more number.  So the rate of severe malnutrition at Shasta Regional Medical Center is actually higher than 20 percent; it’s 32 percent.  Thirty-two percent.  Almost one in every three of their Medicare patients.  However, the rate of kwashiorkor disease specifically—do you all know what kwashiorkor disease is?  It is that disease where you see the pictures in ________ and Africa of the kids with their bellies sticking out because they’re starving to death and they don’t have any protein in their diet.  These guys think that they should be billing 1,000 Medicare seniors in 2009 and 2010 for this disease and say that they’re “ahead of the curve” on coding and documentation.  It’s 1 in every 5 of their Medicare patients.  And then another 13 percent of their Medicare patients have nutritional marasmus or other severe malnutrition.  This is “ahead of the curve.”  And they’re getting paid ahead of the curve for it.  You can see here the yellow ones are Prime, the other two are not.

Encephalopathy, another condition, a brain condition, that also qualifies as a major complication or comorbidity.  This gets you paid very well by Medicare.  These are the top 10 hospitals in the United States of America.  The yellow ones are Prime.  The national median rate was 1.1 percent.  I believe this is the 2009 dataset.  I apologize for mixing and matching some of my earlier presentation.  But Sherman Oaks Hospital, with the highest rate in the United States of America at 28.5 percent—again, national median 1 percent.  California rate might be 2 or 3 percent.  Chino Valley, 28 percent.  We’re talking about, you know, more than 1 in 4 of the seniors that show up at these hospitals are diagnosed with these conditions.  And this is for purposes of MS-DRG payment for Medicare.  But if you look at the Medi-Cal population, you also see very high rates of these very serious conditions popping up.  All of this gets them incredibly good quality scores.  I’ll talk a little bit more about that.

Actually, let me talk about it on this slide.  So at Chino Valley Hospital, you don’t see them here because they’re not on the Top 12 list, but their septicemia rate is also very high.  They also happen to have almost 50 percent of their patients had acute heart failure.  Almost 50 percent of their patients had acute heart failure in 2009-2010.  The second highest hospital was 15 percent, and that was also a Prime hospital.  In fact, I believe the top four or five of them were all Prime hospitals in this data of California.  Of those acute heart failure patients—again, a major complication or comorbidity—gets you paid in the highest DRG levels.  A tremendous number compared to the rest of the country.  Dozens.  You know, maybe 70 or so cases of seniors, 65 and up, had both septicemia and acute heart failure and were discharged not to a nursing home but to their homes, alive, in two days or less.  That’s not just quality of care; that is a miracle.  It is a miracle.  And so yeah, they win quality awards because they are absolute either miracle workers or there’s something that is not right here.


So wrapping this up, I want to just show you the overall impact of this in terms of payment in 2010.  I ran the latest numbers that we have in the data.  And I want you to see that in 2010 that this is starting to spread.  You know, it does seem to be tied to Prime.  But these are the top 10 hospitals in the United States of America for how much you get paid for your average general medical case—you know, taking out considerations of wage index and so forth—just based on what you report to Medicare is the severity of your general medical cases for Medicare patients 65 or up.  


The first hospital you see—California hospital Avanti.  I believe that the Kaiser doctor was referring to Avanti as the other health system that’s starting to follow Prime’s lead.  One of their leaders is a guy named Irv Edwards who runs the emergency rooms at a lot of the Prime hospitals.  They’re now number one in the country for how much they ought to get paid.  Garden Grove Hospital, a Prime hospital, number two.  These guys have more severe cases by a long shot than the Cleveland Clinic or Cedars.  It’s just not believable.  Another southern California chain is third.  Prime are the yellow ones.  HMC again, down there at number six.  Prime at seven.  Some hospital in Michigan.  And then two more Prime hospitals.  That’s the Top 10 list.  You know, like Prime may be ahead of the curve, but people in California are starting to follow.

And Mr. Sarrao talked about the short stays that they try to get—watch their length of stay—and they really do an unbelievable, miraculous job of that.  So what you’re looking at on this chart, on the “X” axis, from left to right—I hope I’m not totally outnerding everybody terribly.  This isn’t too bad.  I know it’s late in the day.  Left to right—How severe are your cases?  General medical cases again.  Those numbers actually line up with these numbers for payment.  The red dot is Prime, the other “X”s are every other health system in the country that had at least 10,000 general medical cases.  So going from left to right, if you’re farther to the right, you’re saying that you have more severe cases.  Going top to bottom, you’re saying that … that means you have more short-stay cases.  So what percentage of your stays—sounds funny—what percentage of your stays are 0 to 2 days?  Very short inpatient stays for somebody 65 and older.  Someone earlier mentioned that it might mean that you didn’t ever have to be in a hospital outside of the emergency room in the first place.  


So you can see that on the top left-hand side, the green lines are your medians.  So above the horizontal green line, you’ve got all the health systems that have an above average number of short stays.  So they’re saying that, you know, they’re getting people out of the hospital quickly, and you can actually see that most of the health systems, a lot of the ones that are above that line, especially the ones that are pretty far above that line, are also pretty far to the left.  They’re not billing Medicare for the high level of severity.  But if you look at Prime, there are only five or six health systems that have a higher number of very short stays in the country, and yet, they have the highest level of severity in the United States by so far that it’s off where you would put the chart if they didn’t exist in the country.  You wouldn’t put the chart, in fact, anywhere near out to 1.34.  You’d cut it off there, you know, at 1.2 something.


So what does this mean for Medi-Cal, right?  Right now we’re paying per diem.  Now they want to get the most money in the country for the shortest stays.  We were paying per diem, so we were paying a lot less.  And so, if we don’t have a really serious plan on accountability here—I didn’t hear one yet; I’m hoping we get there—then we’re going to have a problem.  The resources will be eaten very quickly, especially if these guys are just ahead of the curve and everybody’s going to follow suit.


So wrapping up, I just want to do one more slide for you because people were mentioning this ER business model, and there was one thing about that that really stood out for me that nobody’s mentioned.  It’s from a lawsuit that was filed in Redding where Wal-Mart was actually directly sued, as well as Arkansas Blue Cross/Blue Shield.  I believe Mr. Sarrao was counsel for Prime on this; probably could explain more about it.  But Prime is suing this employer for emergency care provided to employees, and it’s already hard enough, believe me, to get health care coverage especially for certain employers, and Wal-Mart is not particularly known as one that likes to provide care.  But when the cost of care gets driven through the roof, it’s hard to imagine how we’re going to be able to get employers to provide care for employees.  And so, this is just another way that this really affects regular folks.  

Here Prime is billing and demanding and suing this employer for almost $2.9 million for care that cost them $384,000 to provide.  And the way you can calculate that is that you can take the markup, the average markup that Prime reports at that hospital, Shasta Regional Medical Center, to Medicare, and that markup is 646 percent overall.  Now, on the outpatient it’s closer to 1,000 percent.  They charge ten times the price, on the average, for the outpatient.  But overall, if you weight the inpatient with the outpatient, the average is 646 percent.  So if you take their average markup and then you convert their sticker prices of 2.8 million to the cost, it costs them about $384,000 to provide that care.  Wal-Mart paid $477,000 for it.  That’s pretty good business by me.  Like, I’ll take 25 percent.  I’m not really in business but it sounds good.


Prime wants $2.8 … they want the whole thing.  They want 646 percent over the cost.  They want 746 percent of the cost of care.  It is “whatever the heck we charge, we want,” and it is outrageous!  We can’t afford it!  There’s two hospitals in town.  They won’t contract with anybody.  We can’t continue to provide … nobody can continue to provide care for folks if one employer’s supposed to get an extra 2.4 million bucks for providing care in a couple of years to their ER … you know, to their employees who are showing up in the ER.


So this is just a serious concern, and it does have to be addressed, and I really appreciate you all for holding this conference today and everybody who showed up to talk about it.


Thank you.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you very much.  I appreciate the presentation.  We have our next presenter.


MS. LISA DEMIDOVICH:  Good afternoon.  Thank you for the opportunity to speak here today.  I’m a little sick, so I apologize.


My name is Lisa Demidovich.  I’m in-house counsel for United Nurses Associations of California/Union of Health Care Professionals.  We represent over 20,000 registered nurses and other health care professionals in California at Kaiser, Sharp, Tenet, Prime, Daughters of Charity, and other community hospitals.  And we are in a labor dispute at Prime’s Chino Valley.


So I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak here today on behalf of registered nurses who truly are in the frontline of treatment.  And I appreciate the opportunity to share their perspective on how to achieve the purposes of the DRG provision in existing law.  And specifically on three of those purposes:  rewards for efficiency, improved transparency, and improved quality and outcomes.

As we’ve heard today, under EMTALA, patients are coming into an ER out of network—including out of network—and they must be treated and stabilized.  But what the RNs are finding is regularly they do not have access to the patient’s medical records—a small percentage of patients actually carry their medical records with them—and it leads to incredible inefficiencies, delays in care, and it harms patients.  They have to, in fact, start from scratch, without the very important coordination of care that we’ve heard about today.  So our RNs are supporting many of the stories we’ve heard here today.


And what happens when you have to start from scratch, you have to run labs, x-rays, expensive tests that have either already been run elsewhere—in which case, then, there’s multiple billings for the same thing—but you also have the problem that you don’t have a baseline and measuring how things are going with that already existing plan of care.  You’re just starting again without the baseline, without the things that have already been billed and paid for.


There’s also a lot of unnecessary tests that are going on.  So for instance, if someone comes in with abdominal pain, they’re going to have to have a CAT scan on their stomach, and then later they find out, well, this person has colon cancer.  Obviously, that CAT scan was completely unnecessary—or is arguably unnecessary.  Also, if a patient is disoriented, they’ll have to do an expensive CAT scan, and then later you find out that the person has dementia.  This harms patients, it delays care, and also, it leads to increased radiation exposure from the x-rays.  And it stretches the stay.  So it’s important to get patients back to their home facility where they have access to medical records.


At our non-Kaiser facilities, their experience is that, in fact, the EPRP is a great avenue to get information.  It’s a way to provide care, and they find it as a very helpful resource and say that, in fact, Kaiser’s the best in the area for providing access to information that they wouldn’t otherwise have and can have more pinpointed care plans.


And with the goals of promoting quality care and transparency, the registered nurses must have a voice.  It’s a night-and-day difference between union and nonunion environments.  One example is with the state-mandated nurse-patient staffing ratios, and in the emergency room it can vary.  One to four is the standard, but if it’s an intensive care patient, then one nurse should only have two patients.  And if it’s a very high acuity, you’d only have one to one.  But what we find is that from our nurses that work in both union and nonunion hospitals, they consistently state that they will speak up when they are out of ratio in union hospitals because they feel that they have the protection provided by the union contract.  At nonunion hospitals, they fear losing their job if a single RN stands up.  The unions provide a real check that quality patient care trumps profit.

Thank you, and I’d be happy to answer any questions.


SENATOR HERNANDEZ:  Thank you, again, for your presentation.


At this time we’re going to open it up to public comment.  It’s getting late in the evening—or in the afternoon.  Anybody who would like to speak, we can just make it succinct.


Any public comment?


All right.  Let me take this opportunity, number one, to thank everyone in the audience who came this morning and stayed the afternoon.  It was quite informative and very educational to me.  I’d like to also thank USC for providing this incredible facility.  It just was a remarkable place, and I want to thank them for it.  


You know, 2014 is here.  It’s here.  We have a historical piece of legislation that passed at the federal level, and we haven’t seen anything that historical since the mid-’60s during the Johnson Administration and the Medicare Act.  Through the Affordable Care Act that’s going to be implemented here, not only in this country but in the state of California, we are now going to be requiring every single resident to purchase health insurance.  Half of those are going to be on Medi-Cal.  It is our responsibility, and my responsibility as a state senator for the 24th Senate District but also as chair of the Health Committee, to, number one, make sure that every single person has access to quality health care.  More importantly, everyone has access to primary care doctors.  But more importantly, that the consumer is allowed and can pay the most cost-effective price possible for that care.


I also understand that it is important that hospitals, but not only hospitals—providers, drug manufacturers, everyone in the health care industry—has the ability to maintain and keep their doors open and have a reasonable profitability level and not take advantage of the consumer or take advantage of the health care system.  


So with that in mind, that’s the reason why I held this “Hospital Reimbursement Mechanisms,” because I have heard some very concerning remarks with regard to Prime.  And it’s not just one entity; it’s several entities, whether it be the federal government, congressional members, other Assembly Members, whether it’s SEIU.  You know, there’s a variety of individuals.


So what I was hoping to do is not necessarily just put light on this one issue but put light on the entire issue, and that’s why I tried to make this hearing balanced to allow every point of view, whether it be from the Department of Health Care Services’ Toby Douglas, from Vivian Wu on what we heard earlier with all the information, to allow the different health plans’ perspective, the hospitals’ perspective, and Prime’s perspective.  But at the end of the day, it is the responsibility of government to make sure that there’s fair and equitable payment and that everyone has complete access to health care.

So with that, I’d like to just close and thank everyone for being here this evening, and it sparked my attention and my interest in the issue.  In closing, I’d like to tell Adam that it was not wonkish.  I really appreciated all of those numbers because numbers were truly … you did an incredible job.  Thank you for all of that information.  If you don’t mind, if you can get for my staff and me that PowerPoint presentation, it’d be great.


All right.  Thank you very much.  Meeting adjourned.
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